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Values B &

Heart and Harmony

20ERE MEHD

* We strive for perfection through service from the heart
and work harmoniously together by complementing
and supplementing each other.

HAFORS NHETE UAMELD R EHE

o

Can-do attitude and Commitment to quality

LEBEE BEAR

¢ We uphold a can-do attitude with integrity and are
committed to delivering quality that will earn the
respect and loyalty of our stakeholders.
BMBRELBERNEE BTHERENES MR
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Significant Events of the Year
AEXEERE

JAN — H

FEB — A

Formed alliance with US based Binswanger and Kidder Mathews to
develop business in corporate real estate services and real estate
investment services in the US market.

£ 2€ @ BinswangerfKidder Mathews# F R ER T B HREES
o2 BR 7 K B M EE 4R & AR A

MAR = H

Provision of property management services to Shek Kip Mei Estate.

RAEREBIRE Y EE B RS -

Provision of car park management services

to Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital

Carpark.

RERBLERABITRER FEBRHEEFES

EIRRRTS o
Awarded “Caring
Company 10
Consecutive Years
Award Logo” by Hong
Kong Council of Social
Services.

BEEBHERBHMERE EEI0FARRME]
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Provision of facility management services to
Cathay Pacific Cargo Terminal.
RBERMETEWIRHRMEE IR -



Significant Events of the Year

TEXELEE

APR I H

Awarded a property management support
services (PMSS) contract for seven major
shopping malls located in Tin Shui Wai by
The Link.

BERENMEERXERBEH TERE
32 5 R 7K B 89 A M8 K B 7 35 B A AR 755 o

MAY £ H

Provision of facility
management
services to three
public riding schools
under the Hong
Kong Jockey Club.
REBERFG=MAR
RER BRI R

IR

JUN < A

Provision of property management services to Ma Tau Wai
Estate and Tai Hang Tung Estate.
R EREA AT R B Y R E R -

Provision of property management consultancy services
to four projects by Jinyushan Group in Linyi, Shandong.
AL RERT & F LS B M E1E B 12 4t 1) 3 B 1 R AR
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Significant Events of the Year

AEXREREHE

JUL £ A
Awarded the research consultancy
services contract of six projects by
Jinfeng Group in Shantou.
saRIE S BN HIE B A 7 KRB
HARTE & 47 o

AUG N\ B

Provision of property management
consultancy services to La Viva in
Tieling City, Liaoning Province.
REBELHETIEE - EHEFRREMH
) 5% E IR B RS -

SEP 1. A

Awarded the facility management services of CUSCS —
Tseung Kwan O Learning Centre.
EEBPNRBEREESE - BRERHEPOREE
BRREAHK -

Provision of facility management services to Centennial
College.
RAEERRMHREEIEIR -



Significant Events of the Year

TEXELEE

NOV +— A

Acquired the Interiors and Special Projects business from Hsin
Chong Construction Group Ltd. which is a synergistic acquisition
to Synergis’ existing renovation, alteration and additions, and
repair and maintenance business.
FMFELEEEBRAFKRE T EARMHLERER XK G&E
BIRA®H NEENERGEERRERZLM S SEBRMNEZ
Wi o

Set up Synergis International Real Estate Advisory Services Limited for
providing the outbound real estate investment services for the Chinese
High Net Worth Individual.

I EBREMEZRARBERLR APEREEFEATRHE
FHNE HhEE IR B PR ©

Awarded the HKQAA-HSBC CSR Advocate Mark by the Hong
Kong Quality Assurance Agency.
EERMERE BHKQAA-HSBCRE 2 & B AL EHZH -
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Chairman’s Statement
FREWHRE

Chairman, Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai
E, TREEE

It was an impressive and remarkable year for Synergis as we
leveraged the strength of our cash flow to invest in a substantial value
creating acquisition and in organic growth, as well as rewarding our
Shareholders.

OVERVIEW

| took over Chairmanship of the Board of Synergis Holdings
Limited (the “Company” or “Synergis”) in July 2012 at which time,
| envisioned growing the Company organically and by pursuing
appropriate Merger & Acquisition transactions when practical. This
was in line with the Company’s consistent growth and diversification
strategies which would help to develop a stronger business, offering
our clients both more integrated and enhanced service and better
value propositions to our shareholders.

One of the subsequent key events in 2012 was our successful
acquisition of Interiors & Special Projects (“ISP”) business from our
holding company, Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (‘HCCG”),
which was completed in November. This acquisition will significantly
increase our existing repair and maintenance business to include
major alteration and addition (“A&A”) works; demolition works;
renovation and conservation works; fitting-out works for commercial
projects; commercial residential, retail and institutional special
building projects; and maintenance and construction work. Some of
ISP’s proven track record and successful projects include inter-alia
the famous American fashion brand Forever 21 flagship store in
Causeway Bay; the I.T. Shop in Hysan Road; a number of mega
AEON Stores; A&A and renovation works for the Lee Gardens,
the shopping arcade of the Prince’s Building in Central and of

*  for identification purposes only (£ £ 5l
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Harbour City and Ocean Centre in Tsim Sha Tsui; the new food
factories for Café de Coral and Kee Wah Bakery; the conservation
and revitalization of the former North Kowloon Magistracy into the
Savannah College of Arts and Design; the refurbishment of Swire’s
Sincere Insurance Building; and the relocation and expansion of
Hong Kong Maritime Museum. Furthermore, as a licensed contractor,
a registered general building contractor and a registered specialist
contractor, ISP division has successfully expanded its geographic
base from Hong Kong, to Macau, to Beijing and other cities in
Chinese Mainland. ISP division has exceeded the minimum profit
guarantee under the terms of the acquisition of HK$30.0 million and
strong project pipeline is already in place.

Our other investment was in the establishment of Synergis
International Real Estate Advisory Services Limited (“Synergis
International”), through an alliance with two leading US real estate
consultancies, Binswanger and Kidder Mathews, and a US-
based investment company, Greater China Assets Ltd.. Synergis
International offers unique services to Chinese companies and
high net worth individuals seeking access to make investment in
international real estate market as well as providing real estate
solutions to multi-national companies entering China.

Looking at our existing core businesses, | am pleased to report
the annual results of Synergis and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012. In a continuing
challenging economic environment, 2012 proved to be a satisfactory
year with solid double digit increases in turnover and gross profits in
our Hong Kong business across our Facility Management, Property
Management, Carpark, Maintenance, Trading and Supporting
Services business lines. We have taken measures to enhance the
cost efficiency of our Asset Management Services (“AMS”) in the
Chinese Mainland, which has yet to achieve break-even, but our
dedicated, determined and professional China team continues
to strive hard in expanding its client base in retail consultancy,
leasing and AMS, with good progress achieved this year. Despite
the continued investment in the Chinese Mainland, our disciplined
management of the business in Hong Kong enabled us, in large
measure, to offset the impact of increased investment costs in the
mainland which adversely impacted our Group results again in 2012.
The Group recorded growth in revenues, increased profitability and
strong cash flows in the 2012 Financial Year.

Our business is a people business and, as a consequence, we
continue to invest in the training, development and retention of
our people. Our dedicated Talent Development Program and Post
Promotion Development Program have enabled us to identify and
enlarge our employee talent pool, as well as accelerate their career
progressions. Such programs, together with our focus in “We Praise,
We Excel” appreciation culture group-wide initiative, has enabled us
to retain the best talents. | believe that with the combination of our
strong team, diverse service offerings and focused strategies, we are
very well positioned for the future.
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Qhairman's Statement
FRERE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group reported revenues of HK$908.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: HK$678.8 million), an increase of 33.8%
compared with last year. Gross profit increased by HK$27.8 million to
HK$133.7 million, being an increase of 26.3% over last year (2011:
HK$105.9 million).

Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$18.7 million (31 December
2011: HK$16.0 million) an increase of 16.9% over last year. The
board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of the Company
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 2.5 HK cents
per share for the year (31 December 2011: 3.5 HK cents per share).
Together with the interim dividend of 2.0 HK cents already paid, total
dividends for the financial year will amount to 4.5 HK cents per share
(81 December 2011: 4.4 HK cents per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Throughout the year, Synergis continued to develop and grow its
property management portfolio in Hong Kong and the Chinese
Mainland. | am pleased to report that the Group has successfully
secured and operated several new sizeable high profile Facility
Management contracts in Hong Kong, including the award with our
ongoing client, Hong Kong Jockey Club, for its three Public Riding
Schools and the award of a Cathay Pacific Cargo Terminal contract.
This contract, together with an 11-year existing contract with Asia
Airfreight Terminal, also reaffirms our expertise in comprehensive
air-cargo facilities management. Our existing education facilities
management portfolio remains strong and we also continue to offer
extended services with our ongoing flagship client partner China
Light & Power.

In Hong Kong, under our Property Management portfolio, we have
been awarded the Property Management Support Services contract,
covering 7 Shopping Centers in Tin Shui Wai. Leveraging on
Synergis’ extensive management portfolio of 134 private residential
and high-end properties, totaling over 60 million sg. ft., and 165,000
residential units, we have achieved steady growth through our value
added services to offer more comprehensive integrated solutions
to our customers. These include building consultancy; repair and
maintenance; improvement/renovation works; slope maintenance;
energy management; cleaning; security solutions; materials
purchasing and laundry services. Our strategy of developing our
Maintenance Business has achieved good growth and secured five
large scale building maintenance works under the Operation Building
Bright Scheme in 2012.

In China, we had solid business development during the year
with 36 additional projects. For the AMS business, these include
inter-alia La Viva in Tieling, Shenyang covering over 100,000 sgm
leasing area in Phase 1 and potentially over 1,000,000 sgm leasing
area in subsequent phases; the Park View Coast Phase 1 and 2,
respectively with 222,000 sgm and over 1,000,000 sgm.
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OUTLOOK

Synergis management always strives to expand and build on the
Company’s operating platform. While we continue to enhance our
Hong Kong core businesses in property and facility management,
we work hard to strategically identify and extend into new growth
areas. Our acquisition of the ISP business will significantly increase
the growth in our revenue and operating profits. Our Synergis
International business will enable us to leverage our Hong Kong and
Chinese Mainland networks, extend our client reach and expand
more vigorously in the higher-margin leasing business. Looking
ahead to next year, the pipeline of new contracts with our existing
and new businesses is encouraging and we expect to see improving
performances.

More specifically, in Hong Kong, with our access to an extensive
portfolio of residential and commercial properties, we will continue
to enhance and grow our “one-stop-shop” solutions to our
Property Management and Facility Management clients as well as
leveraging our enhanced renovation and maintenance capabilities
to capture opportunities under various Government initiatives (e.g.
the Mandatory Building Inspection Scheme, the Mandatory Window
Inspection Scheme and the Operation Building Bright Initiatives).

We anticipate that the Chinese Mainland business will remain
challenging. However, our core business in Hong Kong remains solid
and our newly acquired ISP business will contribute in driving future
revenue and margin growth. Moreover, ISP will focus on increasing
its project pipeline arising from its solid client base and the increasing
market demand for retail fitting works in Hong Kong. At the same
time, we will also maximize cross-selling facility management
opportunities from ISP and will also expand ISP into the Chinese
Mainland and other hotel renovation projects in Macau.

Looking forward, we are confident and remain positive about the
opportunities to grow the business and are well positioned to
capitalize on the growth potential through integrated service offerings
and extended geographies.

APPRECIATION

Our results are a reflection of the quality of our people across the
business lines from the senior management to our front line staff.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of my Synergis
colleagues for their continued contribution and commitment to our
clients, our consumers and our values.

| also thank our shareholders, business partners, clients and
suppliers for their great support and confidence in us.

Wilfred Wong Ying Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Group Structure
KERE
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis
EEER W RMB DN

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE MBERE
SUMMARY i
2011 Change

—E——F #E)
Revenue HK$'M 678.8 33.8%
W= BEAETT
Gross profit HK$'M 105.9 26.3%
EF BERET
Operating profit HK$'M 20.3 62.1%
K T BERETT
Profit attributable to shareholders HK$'M 16.0 16.9%
1% BR FE 46 Vi BEBETT
Earnings per share HK Cents 4.8 16.7%
TR & A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group reported AEBREHEEZE_T——F+_A=+—HILFEHELHR
HK$908.5 million of consolidated revenues, HK$133.7 million & Uz %008,500,0007T + FF7E%133,700,0007T M FE
of gross profit and HK$18.7 million of attributable profits, which 153 78 #18,700,0007T * 7 Bl #% 2= 4 A I8 18 Hn33.8%
represents substantial increases over last year of 33.8%, 26.3% and  26.3% }16.9% °

16.9%, respectively.

Earnings per share were 5.6 HK cents for the year which was 16.7%  ANEE SR EF BB E560L BEFERI6.7% (ZF
higher than last year (2011: 4.8 HK cents). ——F B E48() -

Synergis Holdings Limited _
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF A SERBR AR BIRERE A
THE COMPANY

HK$'000
BT T
30,000
25,000 26,152
20,000 — 21,152
18,347
15,000 — 16,001
| \\
10,000 — \\
_ Annual Results
BERLE
—
5,000 — —Hl
8- Interim Results
RS
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS AND FINANCIAL EBOBEENBRE

HIGHLIGHTS
Revenue (HK$'M) Operating Profit (HK$'M)
Wz (BEEERT) KERF (BEEER)
2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change
. = i £y —B-=F —T—F 2%
Property & Facility Management %) % J 5% i & 12
- Hong Kong BB 627.8 568.7 10.4% 35.3 30.7 15.0%
Property & Facility Management ¥ % K 5% i & 32
— Chinese Mainland —HE R 28.5 22.6 26.1% -18.1 -18.3 1.1%
Interiors & Special Projects ENEHRFKRIER
(acquired on 30 Nov 2012%) (R=ZF—=F
+—R=+HKE") 98.4 0.0 n.a. 8.5 0.0 na.
Repair and Maintenance BERRE 92.2 46.2 99.6% 4.0 2.2 81.8%
Supporting services TRRH 61.6 413 49.1% 3.2 57 -43.9%
Total st 908.5 678.8 33.8% 32.9 20.3 62.1%
* Representing one-month result only * ERFRI1EAZEE
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis

REVENUE Y28

HK$’000
BEFIT

1,000,000

900,000

800,000

700,000

600,000

500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000

100,000

2009 2010 2011

2012

| Property and
facility Mgt - ML

| Property and
facility Mgt - HK

WE LR EE IR LENE Ty =ge
— &k — P ERM

[ | Repair and Maintenance

isp
ERERERIBE HIERIRE

[ | Supporting Services
SRR

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
OVERVIEW

Despite the highly competitive market for the property services
industry in Hong Kong, all our business segments achieved
satisfactory revenue growth in 2012. In order to achieve sustainable
and profitable growth for the Company, the management has
developed strategies for expanding service capabilities of the
Company in providing a “one-stop-shop” solution to clients. The
Company has acquired the ISP business from its holding company,
Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (Stock code: 0404) (“HCCG”)
during the year. With the acquisition of the ISP business, the
Company can provide further enhanced services to clients with
needs for any building renovations, large scale fitting-out works and
more sophisticated or complex, large building remodeling works.

With the growing outbound investments by the Chinese High Net
Worth Individuals (“HNWI”), we established Synergis International
Real Estate Advisory Services Limited (“Synergis International”),
through an alliance with two leading US real estate consultancies,
Binswanger and Kidder Mathews, and a US-based investment
company, Greater China Assets Ltd.. Synergis International offers
dedicated services to Chinese companies and HNWI seeking access
to investments in the international real estate market, and primarily
the US market, as well as providing real estate solutions to multi-
national companies entering China.

EHEBR W RMBTN

GROSS PROFIT E |
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
(Continued)

PROPERTY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

The Group continued it's consistent growth in the property and
facility management business in Hong Kong. Total revenues grew by
10% to HK$627.8 million, of which HK$38.0 million was from new
facility management (“FM”) contracts with corporate clients, including
inter-alia the Government Property Agency; the Hong Kong Police
Headquarters; CLP Power Hong Kong Limited; and The Hong Kong
Jockey Club.

As a result, the overall net profit margin increased by 15.0%, with the
operating profit increased to HK$35.3 million.

We have awarded a two-year Property Management Support
Services contract for managing 7 shopping centres in Tin Shui
Wai area with effect from 1 April 2012 from The Link Management
Limited and received a special performance related bonus for the
existing car park contracts during the year. Furthermore, the Group
continues to achieve growth in the property management and related
services business in Hong Kong with the award of substantial new
contracts by the Hong Kong Housing Authority, such as the contract
for managing Shek Kip Mei Shopping Centre and Non-Domestic
Premises.

As one of the market leaders in property management services,
the Group was able to continuously expand its portfolio by gaining
a number of management contracts for residential and industrial
projects. The new contracts include inter-alia Regal Crest (& %£%8)
Full Wealth Gardens (& #{EE ) , Mansion Court (3222 F) , Ching
Shing Court (F %) , Ho Ming Court (J%B%2) , Century Center
(42 TR0 ) and Yale Industrial Centre (£ TEH 1) .

Having been providing the FM service to the Asia Airfreight
Terminal (“AAT”) for 11 years since 2001, Synergis has renewed the
management contract with AAT for another 3 years commencing
from October 2012. We have also been awarded a 3-year FM
contract for the management of Cathy Pacific Cargo Terminal starting
from March 2012. This HK$5.5 billion cargo terminal is a multi-storey
warehouse complex with an entire site area over 240,000 sgm,
containing state-of-art material handling systems. With management
of two out of the three cargo terminals in the Hong Kong
International Airport, Synergis has demonstrated a strong expertise
in management of air cargo terminals and similar complex facilities in
Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
(Continued)

PROPERTY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT
SERVICES (Continued)

Hong Kong (Continued)

Synergis has also successfully renewed the management contract
with The Hong Kong Jockey Club with extended service scope for
three Public Riding Schools in Tuen Mun, Pokfulam and Lei Yue Mun
for 3 years commencing from November 2012. The renewal of the
long term contracts reflects the confidence of our clients in Synergis’
capabilities in FM and excellent open partnering relationships.

Leveraging on our strong client base and the Synergis professional
brand and reputation in the FM market, our FM team has further
increased its market position by acquiring new contracts in town.
We have expanded our services to other educational establishments
in addition to the Company’s existing strong education FM
management portfolio. The new FM contracts include the Island
South (Pokfulam) Campus of the Centennial College and the Chinese
University School of Continuing and Professional Studies (CUSCS) -
Tseung Kwan O Learning Centre.

Chinese Mainland

The Group continued its investment and expansion into related
businesses in selected cities in the Chinese Mainland. Increases
in revenues and gross margin were mainly due to the award of
additional contracts in retail consultancy services in Tieling as well
as AMS rendered to Tsui Wah Catering Management Group (“Tsui
Wah Group”), Hong Kong Island Centre (7 & /) in Tangshan (B
) and The Linyi Jinyushan (2T % 1) in Shandong (1LZ) .
However, after offsetting the increased staff costs from the planned
expansion, the operating loss remained almost to the sams as last
year. Decisive action is being taken to ensure that such losses (being
in reality, the costs of investing in business in the mainland) will be
significantly reduced in 2013.

With the continued growth in the commercial property market in the
Chinese Mainland, the Company has strengthened the capabilities
across the business lines to enhance “one-stop-shop” solutions
to meet the demands from increasingly sophisticated property
developers and institutional real estate investors. In 2012, the team
has made progress in obtaining a number of retail consultancy,
leasing, facility management and asset management services
contracts in Shanghai, Beijing, Qingdao and Tieling.

BB F R o

(KX REELDE®

YD % Nt B IR AR A ()

EFiE ()

HEBEENTRNEEEESCEETEAYN RE®HE
BAZHM  BEMREAF—HARRMESR §=F
——F+—ARABCSF SERYANRRES Y
PR IRAE NS0 R B T HEINE LA VERBMR

ERAEEEREEETSE T REATPERLERR
8 RiEEREFRDESRNBRNHFEL E—FEY
RTISHA - ARRNHABEREERRBEFASRE
HERR BAMNACKRBEREESHE TIEHRE-
MREEERNERREERESE CEFRM)RE LKE
BRXARBEXEEBREFERHEH D -

B P it

AREBERTEAMEERTIRE RARMBRES K
s NMGEREMIE I T 2RV EE TR HTIE T EERR
BaK URREZREREE ([RELE]) BEUH
BEFORIUIREBEASEUNBEEEERBSH A
- R ERET BIE M B TR - K8 BB M F—F
EABHER - AEE D RBUREN T8 R T —=FF
BRASER (FREBRER/RENMEBHKA) -

BEEPEALNARYETSRHEER AEED A
REEBBIBNE N R [ BRTE Uk
ERANDERRBNEHERBREENTE - N
T EREFRLE R FEREENTER
BMHE REEEREEETERBEH L HMEE
Ee

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012



Management Discussion and Financial Analysis

BB W R B o0

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
(Continued)

PROPERTY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT
SERVICES (Continued)

Chinese Mainland (Continued)

During the year, the Group was appointed by HCCG to provide AMS
to La Viva ( £1% 7 %) project in Tieling (§i%8) , Shenyang (}&F5) ;
a new township comprised of mixed residential and commercial
properties with total planned gross floor area of 3,000,000 sgm,
which is expected to be completed in several phases over 6 to
8 years. Synergis provides the market research, and property
management consultancy and leasing services to the La Viva project
in the first phase of development which comprises of 340,000 sgm
of leasing space. Apart from the La Viva contract, the Group has
secured a number of AMS contracts, including the New Oriental
Building (#7575 K& ) in Beijing, Qigihar Wan Cheng Hui (& 254
BB IE) in Qigihar, Jinfeng Project (§81&T8 8 ) in Shantou and
Shanghai Xinlonghua Culture Industry Center ( b8 3 882 XL E %
# L) in Shanghai.

We have established good relationship with Tsui Wah Group and
the Group has been awarded an additional 3 project management
services contracts for their outlets in Shanghai. The Group has
also secured five retail consultancy contracts during the year.
These contracts includes the Linyi Jinyushan projects located
in Shangdong, a complex development with over 606,000 sgm
including office building, residential projects and retail developments;
the Handan Project ( HB#3% 2 ) in Handan ( HEER) with over 300,000
sgm; SH Inter Port (WZEEI KB ) in Erdos (SFEE % H7) with over
160,000 sgm; and Jilin Century Plaza ( & #ktt 42 &5 ) in Jilin (&)
with over 100,000 sgm.

Repair and Maintenance

One of Group’s key strategies for 2012 was to expand the repair
and maintenance business and to seize opportunities arising from
various government initiatives and programmes and total revenues
from this segment doubled to HK$92.2 million, with the operating
profit increased sharply by 81.8% to HK$4.0 million. Projects
included inter-alia new repair and maintenance contracts consisting
of significant renovation works undertaken for Manlai Court, Ngong
Shuen Chau Barracks, and large scale repair works projects under
the Operation Building Bright Scheme during the year.

(KR EEDE®

YN RIEE IR (8)

rhE Pt ()

RAFE AEEEFNELERE MBESEEMNEN
HEREEEETERS 2N UMBERSRAEELD
Y% 238 2|2 5 75 53,000,000°F 5 3K - 18 #A A /<
ENFADHBEX - FEEENFEF —HERBEME
SREARERRET S DESEEMERAERS-
THEE—HMEE®EEA340,000F 5K - EWNEFE
W REBEERSSEMNEETIERBEAEL BIELRT
HEAAE BEEVRBHEERBESWE JlsEmaisE
HE N BT ESFEEXLEEFR -

BRMERELEEEVRTEFR AEEERELSEN T
BETLEEDEN=ZNHEBEEERGALN ANEBNRKE
ERRESHENEEREMAY BELURERFE€E LA
B HEAGAHEER  MiEH606,000F F K BIEHA
EAE-FEBEERTERE  MEMBE RS EmER
300,000 752K ; SB&R 2 H iy 1) 2 BIFR % + M45%82160,000
TR REMT S M 4L E S - ®iE#100,000F 757
}Ko

HERIRE
REER-_ZT——_FNETBERB 2 —AERBERRE
2% MBREBTSEEZLEB NS - o ImE
W Z5 518 2781 02,200,0007T + 45 & F1) 28 E 1L 1181.8%
ZE¥54,000,0007T - FRAERIEE B1E  ER - BH
NELEHIBEERRESYN (BEARKEBHIRE) -
UKk EFEFHFRTH] TSEAREETRER -



Management Discussion and Financial Analysis

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
(Continued)

PROPERTY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT
SERVICES (Continued)

Supporting Services

Total revenues from supporting services increased by 49.1% to
HK$61.6 million. All services including trading business, cleaning
and security services reported steady growth with significant
improvement in revenues, but operating profit decreased to HK$2.5
million compared with 2011 as we made substantial investment in
human resources to support the growth momentum.

INTERIORS & SPECIAL PROJECTS

The acquisition of the ISP business from HCCG was completed on
30 November 2012 and was largely financed by a 5-year bank loan
of HK$180.0 million together with issuance of 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares at completion. A further 21,333,333 convertible
preference shares will be issued if the additional profit above the
minimum guarantee condition was achieved for the year.

On a standalone full-year basis, during 2012 the ISP business
recorded HK$876.3 million total revenues, HK$57.3 million gross
profits and HK$42.0 million profit before taxation. However, as we
acquired this business at the end of November 2012, the results for
the month of December were consolidated into the Group’s 2012
financial statement with revenue of HK$98.4 million and an operating
profit of HK$8.5 million. After taking into account the non-recurrent
acquisition transaction costs, together with amortisation of intangible
assets and interest expenses associated with this acquisition, the
consolidated earnings before taxation of ISP business was only
HK$2.1 million for the Group. In 2013, ISP will make a full year
contribution to revenues and profits.
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
(Continued)

INTERIORS & SPECIAL PROJECTS (Continued)

Based on the track record and the current order pipeline of this
business, management considers the ISP business segment will be
a significant contributing factor to the future growth in the Group’s
revenues and net profits. ISP business prior years’ performance
(without shared services cost allocation) is shown in the following
table:
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2012 2011 2010

—®-=% -T-—% -T-%F
Revenue HK$'M 876.3 696.7 347.8
& BEBRET
Gross profit HKS$'M 57.3 35.0 16.1
EH BEBEET
General and administrative expenses HK$'M (15.3) (11.9) (5.9)
— M RITHAX BERET
Profit before taxation HK$'M 42.0 23.1 10.2
R 758 A s A BEBET
Gross margin % 6.5% 5.0% 4.6%
EEREN Bkt

The acquisition of ISP business will significantly increase the Group’s
existing repair and maintenance business by including major
alteration and addition (“A&A”) works; demolition works; renovation
and conservation works; fitting-out works for commercial projects;
commercial, residential, retail and institutional special building
projects; and maintenance and construction work.

At 31 December 2012, the ISP business in Hong Kong had 21
work-in-progress contracts with an aggregate outstanding order
book of approximately HK$739.0 million. These contracts include
the A&A works at Ocean Gallery and Ocean Centre in Tsim Sha
Tsui; renovation works at Sogo Department Store in Causeway Bay;
fitting out works of AEON Skyline Plaza Store in Tsuen Wan and
Kowloon City Store in Kowloon City; and the refurbishment of Sincere
Insurance Building.

Furthermore, the ISP business has now actively expanded its
geographic base from Hong Kong to Macau, Beijing and other
cities in the Chinese Mainland. During 2012, the ISP business
has completed two contracts in Beijing, including the renovation
and fitting out works of the East Gate Plaza and the consultancy
services for fitting out works of the New Times Plaza. It will also
be actively involved in the HCCG’s property development project
in Tieling, Shenyang which will be a very substantial new township
comprised of both residential and commercial properties and ISP
has been appointed as the main contractor for the fitting out works
for the sales centre, including show room, sales office and children
playgroup area, commencing in September 2012 and the works are
targeted to be completed in the first half of 2013.
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OUTLOOK
HONG KONG

Moving forward to 2013, the Group’s business portfolio is well
balanced to take advantage of market opportunities. Being a
market leader in the property and facility management industry, the
Group will continue to expand the management portfolio in 2013
by capturing the continuing outsourcing initiatives implemented
by corporations, public organizations, education institutions and
government departments. With the full operation of FM at Cathy
Pacific Cargo Terminal this year, the Group has become one of the
major FM services providers at Hong Kong International Airport.
The Group will also focus on developing further FM services in the
education sector leveraging on the existing strong management
experience.

Management is optimistic about the prospect of the Group with
the acquisition of ISP business. Through the acquisition, the Group
will gain synergistic opportunities for the existing renovation, A&A
works, and repair and maintenance businesses of the Group. Using
the expanded skills and knowledge of the ISP business, the Group
will focus on providing “one-stop-shop” services to our clients on
building maintenance, A&A works and fitting-out works. We are also
well positioned to capture the business opportunities brought in by
Hong Kong Government’s initiatives on the Operation Building Bright;
Mandatory Building Inspection Scheme; the Mandatory Building
Window Inspection Scheme; and favorable policies on industrial
building revitalization.

With significant increase in tourists, there is intense demand for high
end retail renovation and A&A works, particularly in luxury fashion
retailers in Hong Kong. With the further experience of fitting-out
and A&A contracts of the Ocean Terminal, Harbour City, Sogo
Department Stores and AEON Department Stores, ISP is positioned
to capture significant opportunities in retail sector. The Group
anticipates that the business in the fitting-out and A&A works of the
retail properties will continue to grow.

With ISP division appointed as a contractor for fitting-out works for
the parent company’s Tieling real estate projects in the Chinese
Mainland, it is in a good position to seize this opportunity to expand
the fitting-out and A&A business in this development project in
the next 6 — 8 years. ISP division has been appointed as the main
contractor for the fitting-out works of the boutique hotel and the
sales office of the Tieling project and the respective works have
already started in January 2013. The first phase of development
includes 380,000 sgm residential developments and includes 38
blocks of residential buildings ranging from 8 to 28 stories. The
sale of residential property is expected to begin in the third quarter
2013. The team will target to undertake the residential fitting-out
opportunities by launching different packages for the residential
owners in the second half of 2013.

With the opening up of Macau’s locally-controlled casino industry
to foreign competition, the territory has attracted tens of billions of
dollars in foreign investment to provide luxury and prestigious hotel,
commercial and residential developments in recent years. As a result,
hotel renovation projects in Macau will be another key target in 2013.
Leveraging on HCCG'’s construction projects on the Cotai Strip and
the Galaxy Resort and Casino in Macau, ISP division will target the
fitting-out and renovation works for over 4,000 hotel rooms and
120,000 sq. ft retail space in these two major projects.
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OUTLOOK (Continued)
CHINESE MAINLAND

There are many opportunities for AMS in the Chinese Mainland as
property developers are now focusing on developing commercial
properties stimulated by the rapid urbanisation and increasing
disposal incomes estimated under the government’s 12th Five Year
Plan. The Group has experienced management team to take on
all the AMS opportunities. Through the Mainland team'’s efforts,
the Group has now successfully obtained contracts for 36 projects
comprising services for retail consultancy, leasing, AMS and FM. In
addition to the existing projects, the Mainland team will take over
one leasing contract and 4 AMS contracts in the first quarter of
2013. The projects include the 40,000 sgm leasing space of Sun
City Shopping Mall ( E/&[ZFE%E%) , the Shanghai O Mall ( £
JFEEE ) and Shanghai Bao Shan Mall (_Ei8E 1L i A B ES)
in Shanghai, the New Oriental Group Building (18 7 2B A& ) in
Beijing and the Qigihar Wan Cheng Hui ( 252515 f &3 [% ) in Qigihar.
The Group anticipates that there will be more leasing and AMS
contracts to be secured in 2013 given the now established company
profile and project reference in the market.

With the long term strategic partnering relationship with Huawei
Technologies Company Limited (‘Huawei”), the Group has been
awarded a 5-year facility management services contract for Huawei’s
250,000 sgm Research & Development (“R&D”) Centre in Beijing with
the management contract commencing in April 2013. The Group
has also secured an FM contract from Guangzhou Hangxin Aviation
Technology Co., Ltd (&N MEfnZe BHE A R]) to provide services to
Hangxin’s 250,000 sgm R&D Centre in Guanzhou starting from April
2013.

In addition to the appointment of ISP division as the main contractor
for fitting-out projects in Tieling, Liaoning, our Mainland team has also
been appointed as the AMS manager to provide AMS and leasing
for Phase 1 of the La Viva project in Tieling comprising 380,000 sgm
GFA of residential area and 340,000 sgm GFA of retail area.

China is a major growth engine in the global economy. The Company
plans to capitalise on the fast growth rate of the Chinese HNWI
market, the increased Chinese outbound investment and the
substantial foreign direct investment in the coming years. Synergis
International offers advisory services on a diverse array of property
investments in real estate projects primarily in the United States. The
Synergis International team, with the operation base in Shanghai and
Beijing, has started working closely with the US partners to identify
Chinese investors seeking investment opportunities in the US. The
team offers consultancy services to potential clients on investment
products referred by the US partners. With the increasing demand on
the outbound investment by the Chinese investors, the management
believes there is a substantial business opportunity in this new
business of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis

OUTLOOK (Continued)
CHINESE MAINLAND (Continued)

With an expanded portfolio in commercial properties, the Group
remains positive about the eventual financial performance of the
Chinese Mainland business, given a healthy pipeline of business from
our AMS operations which should lead to continued growth and
profitability in the coming years. Looking ahead, with our proven track
record in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland market, the Group is
well-positioned to provide “one-stop-shop” real estate services and
continue to be the trusted and dependable partner for our clients.

FINANCIAL POSITION, CAPITAL
RESOURCES AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

As of 31 December 2012, total outstanding bank loans was
HK$180.0 million (2011: nil), which was borrowed specially for the
acquisition of the ISP business and is repaid over a 5 year period.
The loan is primarily based on a spread to HIBOR prevailing at the
time of drawdown or roll-over. With regard to the current portfolio of
businesses, management expects that the financing requirements for
the remainder of the current financial year will be met in combination
of existing available cash, cash generated from operations, as well as
banking facilities.

The total equity for the Group has been increased with the issuance
of 58,666,667 convertible preference shares and 21,333,333 bonus
convertible preference shares with fair-value totaling HK$78 million,
as part of consideration of the ISP business acquisition.
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FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY AR E
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
Financial position (HK$’000) AR (B¥EF )
Total assets BEBE 780,964 228,135
Current assets mBEE 528,568 210,633
Net assets BEEFE 204,831 125,580
Per share data (HK$) BRER (B¥T)
Basic earnings per share BRERZF 0.056 0.048
Diluted earnings per share BREERN 0.056 0.048
Dividend per share BRRE 0.043 0.044
Net assets per share REEFE 0.524 0.378
Key ratios FEHLR
Gross margin ERER 14.7% 15.6%
Net margin ¥ b 21% 2.4%
Current ratio VTIPS 0.9 2.1
Return on shareholders’ equity (ROE) R HRE (hniEFH)
(weighted avg) 14.2% 12.9%
Dividend payout ratio K BR 90.6% 91.3%
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis

BB W R B o0

FINANCIAL POSITION, CAPITAL
RESOURCES AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY (Continued)

Treasury Management

The Group’s treasury management has a conservative approach in
the management of its financial risks and resources, under the close
supervision of the Executive Directors.

Interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings, in accordance with
market practice and therefore subject to fluctuation at the time of
renewal.

The Group’s business has been conducted primarily in Hong Kong,
and the majority of its assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, and therefore it has minimal foreign currency exposure.
The growth in Chinese Mainland has been funded via permanent
capital injections, which is for long-term and as such foreign currency
hedging is considered unnecessary.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for
speculative purposes. It is also the Group’s policy not to invest its
financial resources in financial products, including hedge funds or
similar vehicles, with significant underlying leverage or derivative
exposure.

Cash Management

The Group operates centralised cash management with cash mainly
placed in short-term deposits with a diversified portfolio of licensed
banks in Hong Kong.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At 31 December 2012, the Group employed a total of 6,649 staff
(2011: 6,287) in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

To cope with the growth of the Group, a competent stable
workforce is essential for meeting the Group’s operational needs
and exceeding customers’ expectation. The Group has defined a
Talent Management Model to manage all Human Resource activities.
The Model uses a competence-based approach to ensure quality
recruitment, training, performance review and succession planning.
It also addresses key issues in staff retention through a variety of
communication programs, skills enhancement workshops, and staff
loyalty programs. This Model has won a number of awards in Human
Resource and Organization Development competitions.
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Management Discussion and Financial Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION, CAPITAL
RESOURCES AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

HUMAN RESOURCES (Continued)

The Group has been continuously making investment in developing
talents for managing growth of the Group. Apart from taking care of
the academic advancement of the staff through an education subsidy
arrangement, the Group has developed a series of core training
programmes for colleagues to enhance both management and
technical skills to ensure achievement of performance excellence.
The Group has also worked out a comprehensive HR succession
plan and identified talents for the sustainable growth of the Group.
The Talents Development Program is one of the major programmes
deployed in identifying and developing high performers, to enable
them fast-tracked career development and personal advancement in
the Company.

Taking into consideration the business growth, staff requirements
in both Hong Kong and China have been defined. In addition to
external recruitment, internal talent pools are identified through work
achievements and performance reviews. Personal development
plans provide exposure to higher accountabilities before promotion
assessment. The Group sets its remuneration policy by referencing
prevailing market conditions and formulates a performance-based
reward system with a view to maintaining market competitiveness for
attracting and retaining high calibre staff. The remuneration packages
of Hong Kong staff include basic salary, discretionary bonus and
other personal benefits.

To ensure our services can exceed customer expectations, the Group
has developed the Total Customer Experience Model to meet the
needs of customers and to provide creative solutions.

Incentive bonus scheme and share options scheme are established
for senior to middle management staff to provide them with initiatives
and incentives to align their performance with the overall profitability
and development of the Group.

Employees in the Chinese Mainland are competitively remunerated in
line with local market terms and conditions.

Fan Cheuk Hung
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Biographies of the Directors
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Mr. Wilfred Wong Yi?g Wai
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BEBERAF
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ETREXRE
Chairman

E

Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai

SBS, JF MFA, BSoc.Sc. (aged 60)

Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai (“Mr. Wong”) was appointed
as an Executive Director and the Executive Deputy
Chairman of the Board in September 2008 and
re-designated to the Chairman of the Board with
effect from 1 July 2012. He is a member of the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the executive committee of the Company and the
executive management committee of the Group. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wong is also a chairman and chief executive officer
of HCCG, the substantial shareholder of the Company.
He is deemed to be one of the substantial shareholders
of HCCG through Neo Summit Limited under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

Mr. Wong joined the administrative officer grade of the
Hong Kong Government in 1975 and served in a number
of key positions including Deputy Secretary for the Civil
Service and Deputy Director — General of Industry. Mr.
Wong joined the private sector in 1992 and since then,
he had held top management positions in a number of
Hong Kong listed companies in property development
and construction business sectors including K. Wah
International Holdings Limited, Henderson China
Holdings Limited and the Shui On Group.

Mr. Wong started his political career at the national
level when he was appointed as a member of The
Basic Law Consultative Committee (1985-1990) by the
Central People’s Government. He was subsequently
appointed by the National People’s Congress of the
People’s Republic of China (‘“NPC”) as a member
of the Preliminary Working Committee for the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”)
Preparatory Committee in 1993 and a member of
the HKSAR Preparatory Committee in 1995, both
bodies were responsible for the transitional policies
and arrangements relating to the establishment of the
HKSAR Government in 1997. Mr. Wong was a Deputy
to the NPC during the period from 1997 to 2013.

Mr. Wong’s public service continues through his
participation in a number of councils and committees in
Hong Kong. He is currently the chairman of Hong Kong
Arts Development Council; the chairman of Standing
Commission on Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service; the chairman of The Hong Kong International
Film Festival Society Limited; the chairman of Hong
Kong Baptist University Foundation; the chairman of
the Pacific Basin Economic Council; the chairman of
Hong Kong Institute for Public Administration and a
member of Hong Kong Film Development Council. He
was the chairman of the Court and Council of the Hong
Kong Baptist University during the period from 2007 to
2012.

For his distinguished public service, Mr. Wong was
awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government of
HKSAR in 2007. He was educated at Harvard University
(MPA), University of Oxford, The University of Hong Kong
(BSoc.Sc.) and The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, which is listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung
Bt

Managing Director
EFRrE

Dr. Catheine Chu
rAEREL
Executive Director

HITEF

Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung (aged 58)

Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung (“Dr. Fan”) was appointed as
Executive Director and Managing Director of the
Company on 16 September 2003. He is a member
of the executive committee of the Company and a
member of the executive management committee
of the Group. Dr. Fan is responsible for the strategic
planning, business development and overall operations
of the Group. He joined the Group in 1997 before the
Company'’s listing on the Stock Exchange in 2003.

Dr. Fan is one of the Hong Kong property management
industry’s pioneers in the implementation of TQM for
achieving performance excellence of the Company.
Dr. Fan was conferred honorary Doctorate of Laws
(Honoris Causa) from the Bulacan State University of
Philippine in 2009. He also holds a diploma in Housing
Management from The University of Hong Kong,
and is a fellow member of The Chartered Institute of
Housing, The Hong Kong Institute of Housing and The
Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management. He is a
Registered Professional Housing Manager registered
under The Housing Managers Registration Board. Dr.
Fan has over 29 years of experience in property and
facility management. Prior to joining the Group in 1997,
Dr. Fan had been employed by the Hong Kong Housing
Department and large-scale Hong Kong property
developers for approximately 15 years.

Dr. Catherine Chu

BSc, MSc, PhD (aged 35)

Dr. Catherine Chu (“Dr. Catherine Chu”) joined the
Group in February 2009 and was appointed an
Executive Director of the Company on 11 September
2009. She is also a member of the executive
committee of the Company and the executive
management committee of the Group.

Dr. Catherine Chu is also an executive director
and a member of executive committee of HCCG.
Dr. Catherine Chu has the overall responsibility for
formulating and overseeing the strategic development
of the Group’s business operations and internal
corporate functions. Dr. Catherine Chu holds a
PhD in Change Management, Master of Science in
Management Information Systems and a Bachelor of
Science in Management, all from the London School
of Economics and Political Science in the United
Kingdom. Prior to joining the Group, she worked as a
consultant and researcher for a global management
consulting firm and established corporations with main
focus in providing corporate strategy analysis and
solution advisory services in the United Kingdom.

Dr. Catherine Chu is the sister of Mr. Tenniel Chu,
the Non-executive Director of the Company, and Dr.
Kenneth Chu Ting Kin, the Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Company upto 30 June 2012.

Biographies of the Directors
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Mr. Tenniel Chu

REEEE

Non-executive Director

BEBERAF
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FHTTEE

Mr. Tenniel Chu (aged 36)
Mr. Tenniel Chu (“Mr. Tenniel Chu”) was appointed
as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 16
September 2008. He is also a member of the audit
committee of the Company.

Mr. Tenniel Chu is an executive director of Mission Hills
Golf Club Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He graduated from the University of Toronto
in Canada with a degree in economics and further
completed a post-graduate study for professional golf
management at Humber College in Canada. Mr. Tenniel
Chu plays a vital role in enticing international events
to Mission Hills Group (“MHG”) including negotiation
with golfing bodies, television rights negotiation and
the staging of events. He is responsible for developing
the international relations for the golf business of the
Mission Hills Golf through Golf World networking and
international tournaments. He is also involved in the
strategic planning of negotiation and execution of
golfers’ visits to MHG. Prior to joining MHG, Mr. Tenniel
Chu had previously worked at the Professional Golfers’
Association of America (PGA of America) headquarter
under the supervision of Mr. Peter Davison where he
underwent an unique management training program for
golf operations, PGA Tournament event organization,
golf maintenance, golf shops and merchandising/
investor control. Mr. Tenniel Chu is actively involved
in the Hong Kong and China charity and community
services. He is the honorary president of the Hong
Kong Golf Media Association, an honorary advisor of
the China-HK Executive Women’s Golf Association
and a member of the programme and fund raising
committee of The Dragon Foundation.

Mr. Tenniel Chu is the brother of Dr. Catherine Chu, an
Executive Director of the Company and Dr. Kenneth
Chu Tin Kin, the Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company upto 30 June 2012.
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Dr. Barry John Buttifant
ZiENEL
Non-executive Director

FHTTEE

Dr. Barry John Buttifant

DBA, FCCA, FCMIUK), FCPA, FHKMA,

FHKIoD (aged 68)

Dr. Barry John Buttifant (“Dr. Buttifant”) was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 27
September 2008 and re-designated as a Non-
executive Director on 19 March 2009.

Dr. Buttifant is also an executive director and a member
of executive committee of HCCG. Dr. Buttifant is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Chartered Management
Institute, The Hong Kong Management Association and
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Dr. Buttifant, being a person distinguished in eminence
and by attainments, was admitted to the degree
of Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration
(Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University in
February 2013. Dr. Buttifant is currently an independent
non-executive director of Giordano International Limited
and Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited, both of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-
executive director of China Nepstar Chain Drugstore
Ltd., which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange
and a non-executive director of Global-Tech Advanced
Innovations Inc., which is currently listed on NASDAQ.
He was an executive director of IDT International
Limited. He has been resident in Hong Kong for over
34 years.
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Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan, GBS, JP (aged 61)

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan (“Mr. Ip”) was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 27 September 2008. He is the chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of
nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Ip joined the Hong Kong Government in November
1973 and was promoted to the rank of Director
of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government
as a Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007.
Senior positions held by Mr. Ip in the past included
Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for Labour,
Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for
Financial Services.

Mr. Ip took up the position of Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His portfolio
in respect of economic development covered air and
sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy,
postal services, meteorological services, competition
and consumer protection. He was also responsible
for labour policies including matters relating to
employment services, labour relations and employees’
rights. Mr. Ip retired from the Hong Kong Government
in July 2007.

Mr. Ip received the Gold Bauhinia Star award from
the Hong Kong Government in 2001, and is an
unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. Ip graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social
Sciences in 1973. He subsequently pursued post-
graduate studies in Oxford University and Harvard
Business School.

Mr. Ip is an independent non-executive director
of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited,
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited, Lai Sun
Development Company Limited, and Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited, all of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Goldpoly New Energy Holdings
Limited, Milan Station Holdings Limited, PICC Property
and Casualty Company Limited, Viva China Holdings
Limited and Yangtz China Investment Limited.
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Dr. Kan Fook Yee
fifEsatE
Independent Non-executive Director

BUHFNTEF

Mr. David Yu Hon To
EERE

Independent Non-executive Director
BYIIHTEF

Dr. Kan Fook Yee, SBS (aged 76)

Dr. Kan Fook Yee (“Dr. Kan”) was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 27 September 2008. He is also a chairman of
the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Dr. Kan holds a Doctor of Law degree from the
China University of Political Science and Law. He is a
practising barrister at law and a fellow member of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators.

Dr. Kan has over 30 years of experience in the real
estate and property field and is a practising Barrister-
at-law in Hong Kong. He joined the Chinachem Group
as director of Corporate Governance on 16 May 2011.
Dr. Kan had been the independent non-executive
director of Winfoong International Limited and resigned
on April 2011, which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. David Yu Hon To (aged 64)
Mr. David Yu Hon To (“Mr. Yu”) was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 27 September 2008. He is also a chairman of the
audit committee of the Company.

Mr. Yu is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in the fields
of auditing, corporate finance, financial investigation
and corporate management. He was formerly a partner
of an international accounting firm, and is the vice
chairman of MCL Partners Limited, a Hong Kong-
based financial advisory and investment firm.

He is currently an independent non-executive
director of several other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange, namely China Datang Corporation
Renewable Power Co., Limited, China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited, China Resources Gas
Group Limited, Great China Holdings Limited,
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd., Media Chinese
International Limited, One Media Group Limited,
Playmates Holdings Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited,
TeleEye Holdings Limited and VXL Capital Limited.
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Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong

OBE, QPM, CPM (aged 67)

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong (“Mr. Wong”) was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 27 September 2008. He is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company.

Mr. Wong joined the Hong Kong Police Force as
an inspector in 1963 and was appointed as Deputy
Commissioner in July 1994. He retired from active
service in January 2001.

Mr. Wong has attended professional courses overseas
including FBI National Academy in Quantico, United
States, Henley Management College in United
Kingdom and Royal College of Defence Studies in the
United Kingdom.

Mr. Wong was the director of Sunbase International
(Holdings) Limited from 2001 to 2008 and he was
also a director of Sunbase International Properties
Management Limited from 2003 to 2008. He is
currently a co-opted member of the Disciplinary
Committee of the Estate Agents Authority.
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Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong
L=

Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee

Mr. Henry Tsang Tin Po
BEXERE

Biographies of the Executive Management Committee Members

THEEZEENMEZERE

Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong, BSc, MHKIE, MCIOB,
MHKICM, ACIArb, R.PE., aged 47, was appointed as
the managing director of Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong
Kong) Limited, Hsin Chong Construction (Engineering)
Limited and Everich Construction (Macau) Limited with
effect from 1 December 2012. Mr. Leung is responsible
for the business development & project monitoring of all
addition and alteration works, renovation works, fitting-
out works, conservation and revitalization works, and
special projects. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and a registered professional
engineer. Before joining the Group, Mr. Leung was a
senior management of HCCG, the holding company of
the Group, where he established and coordinated the
interiors and special projects division. He has over 25
years of experience in project planning & monitoring,
building construction and coordination, cost control,
renovation and fitting-out works.

Ms. Brenda Yau Shuk Mee, aged 52, is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, chief operating
officer of Synergis Management Services Limited and a
member of the executive management committee of the
Group. Ms. Yau is responsible for the overall supervision
of the services contracts with the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and The Link Management Limited and
Group’s operations in procurement control, and
operation excellence. She holds a Bachelor of Housing
Management degree from The University of Hong Kong.
She is a Registered Professional Housing Manager
registered under the Housing Managers Registration
Board, a member of The Chartered Institute of Housing
(Asian Pacific Branch), and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Housing. Ms. Yau joined the Group in
2000 and has over 29 years of experience in property
management and functional administration.

Mr. Henry Tsang Tin Po, aged 52, is a director —
property management and a member of the executive
management committee of the Group. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Tsang oversees the property management in Hong
Kong and property management operation in South
China. He holds a Bachelor of Housing Management
degree from The University of Hong Kong. He is a
Registered Professional Housing Manager registered
under the Housing Managers Registration Board,
a corporate member of The Chartered Institute of
Housing and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Housing. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in 1995 and has
over 27 years of property management experience.
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Bio l;ziphies of the Executive Management Committee Members
THEREZEENEZRE

Mr. Matthew Chor;_g Hon Tak

Mr. Wilson Wong Siu Kwan
EFLEXRE

3

Mr. Edward Yuen Siu Bun
E 3

ft

Mr. Wilson Wong Siu Kwan, aged 55, is the deputy
managing director of the Chinese Mainland business
of the Group. He is a member of the executive
management committee of the Group. Mr. Wong is
responsible for the overall strategic planning, business
development and management operations of the
real estate business in the Chinese Mainland. He is
a member of the Chartered Institute of Housing. Mr.
Wong joined the Group in 2009 and has over 33 years
of extensive experience in real estate service in Hong
Kong, Taiwan and the Chinese Mainland.

Mr. Matthew Chong Hon Tak, aged 45, is the
general manager (technical) and a member of the
executive management committee of the Group.
Mr. Chong is responsible for managing the technical
operations in Hong Kong and the business operation of
Optimum Engineering Limited, a subsidiary responsible
for repair and maintenance services. He holds a Master
degree in Property Development and Investment and
a Bachelor degree in Building Engineering. He is a
Registered Professional Surveyors under Surveyors
Registration Board, a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, a professional member of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member
of The Chartered Institute of Building. He joined the
Group in 2001 and has over 22 years of building
maintenance experience.

Mr. Edward Yuen Siu Bun, MBA, MSc, BSc, CFA,
aged 52, is the chief financial officer of HCCG. He
is responsible for the overall financial management
of HCCG and the Group. Mr. Yuen joined HCCG in
2009. He has had 30 years of working experience in
finance, accounting, treasury and securitization for
both multinational and Hong Kong companies. Outside
of work, Mr. Yuen is a marathon runner and serves in
committees of various non-profit organizations.
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The Company recognises the interests of and its responsibility to
one of its most important stakeholders — the shareholders. Synergis
is committed to upholding high standards of corporate governance
as a means of protecting and enhancing shareholder value and
ensuring the integrity of operations of the Group. Synergis’ corporate
governance standards are built on the principles of independence,
accountability, transparency and fairness with an appropriate system
of checks and balances which are regularly reviewed to address the
growth of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions
and certain recommended best practices set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012, the
“Former CG Code”) and the Corporate Governance Code (effective
from 1 April 2012, the “Revised CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
had fully complied with all code provisions of the Former CG Code
during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012. It had
also complied with the Revised CG Code during the period from 1
April 2012 to 31 December 2012, save for the deviation as explained
below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all the
directors of the Company, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written
guidelines for regulating securities transactions by the senior
management (whose names appear in the annual report of the
Company) and certain employees of the Group (collectively, the
“Relevant Employees”). The Board believes that the Relevant
Employees may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information of the Group. Having made
specific enquiry of all the Relevant Employees, the Company was
advised that all of them have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2012,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPOSITION

The Board is currently comprised of 9 directors, including 3
executive directors, 2 non-executive directors and 4 independent
non-executive directors.

The names of the directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai (re-designated as chairman on 1 July 2012)
Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung
Dr. Catherine Chu

Non-executive Director

Mr. Tenniel Chu

Dr. Barry John Buttifant

Dr. Kenneth Chu Ting Kin (resigned as non-executive director and
chairman on 1 July 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
Dr. Kan Fook Yee

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong
Mr. David Yu Hon To

Updated list of directors identifying their roles and functions
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(http://www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.synergis.com.hk) whenever there is any change.

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the Board members possess a balance of skills and expertise
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group and
they are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Save
as disclosed in the biographies of the directors set out on pages 24
to 32 of this annual report and the facts that Dr. Kenneth Chu Ting
Kin, the non-executive chairman upto 30 June 2012, is the brother
of Dr. Catherine Chu and Mr. Tenniel Chu, there is no relationship
among members of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company currently has 4 independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the total number of Board
members and is in compliance with the requirement under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The views of the independent non-executive
directors carry weight in the Board’s decisions, and their participation
helps the Board exercise judgment, make decisions and act
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has given to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence in compliance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all the independent non-executive directors are and have remained
independent. Mr. David Yu Hon To, chairman of the audit committee,
has the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the independent
non-executive directors, are expressly identified in all corporate
communications which disclose the names of the directors of the
Company.

FUNCTIONS

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. lts
primary functions are to set and direct the Company’s strategy
and monitor and measure the management’s performance. It is
accountable for the overall strategic development of the Group
with the objective to enhance shareholder value. Material matters
are reserved for the Board’s considerations or decisions which
include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group; business
plans; annual budgets; significant capital expenditure; interim
and annual results and reports; dividend policy and payments;
material acquisitions, disposals or investment proposals; directors’
appointments, re-appointments or removal; and other material
transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and
executive committee. It has also delegated the day-to-day operations
of the Group’s business to the senior management. Delegation of
duties to the Board committees and daily business operations to the
management are discussed in the later part of this report.

Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Code provision A.2.1 of the Revised CG Code provides that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established set out in writing. Dr. Kenneth Chu Ting Kin
was the Board chairman upto 30 June 2012. Mr. Wilfred Wong
Ying Wai who was deputy chairman then succeed as the chairman
of the Board on 1 July 2012. Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung is the managing
director of the Company. They are not related to each other and
there are clear divisions among their responsibilities with a view to
achieving a balance of power and authority. The Board chairman
provides leadership to the Board in terms of formulating policies
and strategies, and discharges those duties set out in all the code
provisions and certain recommended best practices under code
provision A.2 of the Revised CG Code. The managing director of the
Company has the overall responsibility of implementing the decisions,
policies and strategies approved by the Board, and overseeing
the Group’s business and operations. The duties of the Chairman
and the managing director are set out in their respective service
agreements entered into with the Company.

With the support from the executive directors and the company
secretary, the Board chairman ensures that all directors are properly
briefed on issues arising from Board meetings and receive adequate,
complete and reliable information on a timely manner.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the directors of the
Company. The Board set up a nomination committee in 2011
to recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the
directors of the Company.

All the non-executive and independent non-executive directors of the
Company have entered into letters of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the bye-laws of the Company (‘Bye-laws”), including the
requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election or standing for
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company at least once
every three years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided
with information on duties and obligations of director, relevant
regulatory requirements and the Group’s business affairs. All directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy would be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company after
appointment.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board
meetings for next year are scheduled approaching the end of each
calendar year in order to facilitate the directors to plan for attendance
of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will be convened, as
and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any director who is
not able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting
through electronic means of communication, such as conference
telephone or other similar communication equipment, in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days
in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings.
The company secretary assists the Board chairman to prepare the
meeting notice and agenda. Each director may include any item
in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by meeting papers with
sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each director not
less than 3 days before the date of a Board meeting to enable the
directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed,
except where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to
consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The company secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the
Board meetings, drafts and final versions of which will be circulated
to directors for comment and records, respectively, and in both
cases, within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board at
the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
the directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and open for inspection
to any director on request.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS (Continued)

All directors of the Company have access to the company
secretary who is responsible to ensure that Board procedures are
complied with and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information,
including reports from the Board committees and reports from the
management. They are also provided with updates on the latest
developments of the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the directors in
discharging their duties as and when appropriate.

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, the Board has
adopted written procedures and circulated them to all directors
to follow in the case any director wishes to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the Company’s
expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing
pursuant to the Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision
in a tight timeframe and hence convening a Board meeting is difficult
or not practicable. In the case resolution in writing is circulated,
sufficient information and explanatory materials will also be provided
to the directors at the same time. During the year ended 31
December 2012, two sets of resolutions in writing were circulated to
the directors for approval and duly passed by the directors. These
written resolutions were tabled for the directors’ review at the next
following Board meeting so that directors were given the opportunity
to raise any further comment (if any) on the relevant matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which
the Board determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting
(as long as time is allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider
the relevant matter first before any subsequent approval is given by
way of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been arranged to protect the directors and officers of the Group.
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ATTENDANCES OF MEETINGS

4 Board meetings, 2 audit committee meetings, 2 remuneration
committee meetings, 1 nomination committee meeting and 2 general
meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2012.
Attendances of these meetings by directors are set out below:
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Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/BEREHE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
Director o =g EREES ¥yMEES REZES e
Chairman *E
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai' TRE 4/4 n/a 2/2 11 2/2
Executive Directors HITEE
Fan Cheuk Hung B 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 2/2
Catherine Chu =B 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 1/2
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Tenniel Chu KRR 2/4 2/2 n/a n/a 1/2
Barry John Buttifant ESNY 4/4 n/a n/a n/a 2/2
Kenneth Chu Ting Kin? R 1/2 n/a n/a n/a 11
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITESE
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan HEHE 4/4 n/a 2/2 11 2/2
Kan Fook Yee GRS 4/4 n/a 2/2 1/1 2/2
Wong Tsan Kwong =EN 4/4 2/2 n/a n/a 2/2
David Yu Hon To EE 4/4 2/2 n/a n/a 2/2

1 Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai appointed as the Chairman of the
Board with effect from 1 July 2012.

2 Dr. Kenneth Chu Ting Kin resigned as the Chairman of the Board
and non-executive director with effect from 1 July 2012.

n/a: not applicable 7~ & A

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board also held
meetings with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the Executive Directors present.

Code provision A.6.7 of the Revised CG Code provides that
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Save for a Non-executive
Director who was not able to attend the special general meeting held
on 15 November 2012, due to his own other important business
engagement, all Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) attended the annual general meeting and
the special general meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2012
and 15 November 2012 respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial position.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code
provision A.6.5 of both Former CG Code and the Revised CG Code
regarding continuous professional development. During the vyear,
the Company had arranged a training session on “The requirements
and expectations of audit committees and the best practices” to
Directors which was conducted by an external professional firm. In
addition, the Directors had attended external courses, conferences
and luncheons organized by various organizations.

Directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates
and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevants legal
and regulatory developments. A record of the Directors’ participation
in various continuous professional development program is kept with
the company secretarial department.

ERHIINEERRE

BUEFHERFENFEARRESTRME URAR
ANEE EHAPRBANER -ARBFANESE
FrER B IESRALEEZE LU BARRZFER

EEOANBRNECEELRTARRETEEE ATRITT
AR EABSKERMIEREEERNBAE -FR AR
RARESRTER [ ARBEZZEE TIEERMHEN
REEER]INIIRBEE A—RINKREXQFATE
Rolpsh EEME2NBTRABBRRNIARE &

BRTER -

EENENARSRERIEBRUBEAERER U
REMABSEE QTR MARARRE RN ERN
BER - —HNEF2EITAKEEXERAEOLH
mATMESRRE -

Reading newspapers,
journals and

updates relating

to the economy,
general business,
accounting, laws, rules

Giving talks or
attending seminars/

conferences/forums and regulations, etc

MEENEE -

—BEE g5 EE-

BITHEERHE RARERETEZ

Name of Directors BELR mg g8 WwiE BRE -HAREHEN
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai THRE v 4
Fan Cheuk Hung BEeS if v v
Catherine Chu Nt v/ v
Tenniel Chu KR v v
Barry John Buittifant 2R 4 v
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan gl v v
Kan Fook Yee GkENG v/ v
Wong Tsan Kwong =V 4 v
David Yu Hon To BEE 4 v
Kenneth Chu Ting Kin' R 4 v

! Dr. Kenneth Chu Ting Kin resigned as the Chairman of the Board
and non-executive director with effect from 1 July 2012.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board committees, namely, the executive committee, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee are established pursuant to the Bye-laws, each of which is
to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities and oversees
particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each Board committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly,
and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific
written terms of reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of
Board meeting.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee of the Board is currently comprised of
3 members, namely, Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai, Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung
and Dr. Catherine Chu.

The authority and duties of the executive committee are set out in the
specific written terms of reference adopted by the Board. Its principal
duties are to approve banking matters, the issue of guarantees to
third party customers and issue of shares under share option scheme
and other duties delegated by the Board from time to time.

The executive committee shall meet as and when required depending
on business and operation needs. Members’ attendances would
depend on the importance of the matters to be transacted. During
the year ended 31 December 2012, the executive committee held
nine meetings to discharge their duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board is comprised of Mr. David Yu Hon
To (independent non-executive director) as chairman, Mr. Wong Tsan
Kwong (independent non-executive director) and Mr. Tenniel Chu
(non-executive director) as members. None of the audit committee
members are or have ever been a partner of the existing audit firm
engaged by the Company.

The audit committee is primarily responsible for conducting an
independent and objective review of the financial reporting process,
internal controls and audit function with emphasis on:

(i) appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s
internal and external auditors;

(i) serve as an independent and objective party to review
the financial information presented by management to
shareholders, regulators and the general public;

(iy  ascertain the adequacy of the Company’s system of internal
control which management and the Board have established;
and

serve as useful channel of communication between the Board
and the external and internal auditors on matters relating to
and arising out of the external and internal audit.

(v)

The authority and duties of the audit committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference. In order to comply with the
Revised CG Code, the Board adopted a revised terms of reference of
the audit committee. Full text of the revised terms of reference of the
audit committee is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the audit committee include, among other
things, recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment or removal of the Company’s external auditor and on its
remuneration; reviewing the Company’s interim and annual financial
statements and other financial reports as prescribed in the specific
written terms of reference; and reviewing the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control procedures (including monitoring
the effectiveness of the internal audit function) and risk management
systems. The audit committee has explicit authority to investigate any
activity within its duties and responsibilities and the authority to obtain
outside legal or other independent professional advice if it considers
necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The audit committee meets at least twice a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, two audit committee meetings were held.
Attendances of the meeting have been disclosed earlier in this report.

During the audit committee meetings held in 2012, the audit
committee members had reviewed, (i) the audit strategy
memorandum from the external auditor; (i) with the participation of
the internal and external auditors and the management, reviewed the
internal control system of the Group; and (jii) with the participation of
the external auditors and the management, the interim and annual
results and the related financial statements of the Company with a
view to ensuring that these financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the accounting principles and standards generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The audit committee had also considered
the reports from the external auditor on the scope and findings of its
independent review of the interim and annual financial statements.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the audit
committee’s view on re-appointment of external auditor, and
they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the
ensuing year at the 2013 annual general meeting of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Board is currently comprised of
Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan (independent non-executive director) as
chairman, Dr. Kan Fook Yee (independent non-executive director) and
Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai as members.

The authority and duties of the remuneration committee are set out
in its specific written terms of reference. In order to comply with the
Revised CG Code, the Board adopted a revised terms of reference
of the remuneration committee. Full text of the revised terms of
reference of the remuneration committee is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The remuneration committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of
the directors and senior management of the Company. lts duties are
summarised below:

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(ii) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(v)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(vij  review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(vi) review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(vii) ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The remuneration committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year ended 31 December 2012, two remuneration committee
meetings were held. Attendances of the meetings have been
disclosed earlier in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration
committee members had (i) reviewed and approved the bonus
distribution proposal of the directors and the senior management
for the year ended 31 December 2011; (i) reviewed the bonus
structure of the executive directors and the senior management; (iii)
reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the salary
of executive directors and senior management; (iv) considered the
services agreement of an executive director; (v) reviewed, determined
and recommended to the Board for approval the directors’ fees for
the financial year ending 31 December 2013; and (vi) approved the
appointment of senior management.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2012 is set out below:
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE GROUP

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to
the prevailing market conditions and benchmark the industry and
to formulate a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives
of the highest caliber, essential to the successful leadership and
effective management of the Group. The performance measures are
balanced between financial and industrial comparatives. Details of
the remuneration policy are set out in the paragraph titled “Human
Resources” in the “Management Discussion and Financial Analysis”
section on pages 22 to 23 of this annual report.

The remuneration packages of the executive directors of the
Company and senior management are determined by the
remuneration committee and approved by the Board by reference
to their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group, individual
performance, achievement of the Group’s targets and the prevailing
market terms in the industry.

The remunerations of the non-executive and independent non-
executive directors of the Company are determined by the Board
under the recommendation of the remuneration committee by
reference to their duties and responsibilities in the Group, time
involvement and prevailing market situation.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Board was established in 2011
and is currently comprised of Dr. Kan Fook Yee (independent
non-executive director) as chairman, Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
(independent non-executive director) and Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai
as members.

The authority and duties of the nomination committee are set out in
its specific written terms of reference. Full text of the said terms of
reference of the nomination committee is available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The nomination committee is primarily responsible for formulating
nomination policy and leading the process of identifying and
nomination suitable candidates. Its duties are summarised below:

(i) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Group’s corporate strategy;

(i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

(i) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee shall meet at least once a year. During the
year ended 31 December 2012, one nomination committee meeting
was held. Attendances of the meetings have been disclosed earlier in
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the nomination
committee members had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and made recommendations to the Board
for approval the re-designation and the change of Board members.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(iy  review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors; and

(v)  review the Company’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board adopted (i) the terms of
reference of the nomination committee; (i) the terms of reference of
the Board of Directors — Corporate Governance Functions; (i) the
revised terms of reference of the audit committee; (iv) the revised
terms of reference of the remuneration committee; (v) the shareholder
communication policy; and (vi) the procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director of the Company. Besides,
the Board had also reviewed the compliance report on Listing Rules
amendments.
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DELEGATION TO MANAGEMENT

The monitoring of the day-to-day business operations of the Group
and the implementation of the business plans and strategies adopted
by the Board are performed by the senior management led primarily
by the managing director of the Company.

The Group has also set up an executive management committee
who meet on a monthly basis to review business operations with
significant issues; review the financial and business performance
against the budget approved by the Board; and review the
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining and reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. In
meeting its responsibility, the Board, through the audit committee
and senior management, is kept appraised of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group and any recommendations
for improvement. The associated policies and procedures for internal
controls, which are properly documented and communicated to staff,
are designed to help ensure that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
against unauthorised use or disposition; relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with; complete, accurate
and reliable financial and accounting records are maintained and key
risk factors including business risks, operational risks, financial risks
and compliance risks which may impact the Group’s performance
are appropriately identified and managed.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the audit committee on audit findings and control
issues. These procedures provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material errors, losses and fraud, and manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programs and
budget.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit team regularly reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Group’s internal control system based on internal
audit plan agreed by the audit committee. Reports on findings,
recommendations and follow-up actions are submitted to the
audit committee for review. During the year, the internal audit
team adopted a 3-year audit plan focusing on examination of the
financial and treasury management, tendering procedures, business
development procedures, procurement, payment controls, payroll
process controls, compliance with applicable rules and regulations
and management of information technology. The primary objective
of internal audit is to provide an objective assurance on the internal
control system and ensure that a reliable internal control system is in
place.

Based on the review and reports of the internal audit team, the audit
committee and the Board are satisfied that no significant control
weakness was identified in the existing control environment, and the
internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.

RISK ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE

With a view to further enhancing risk management at all levels, a risk
assessment committee, as approved by the audit committee and the
Board, was established to assume the responsibility for identifying,
evaluating, assessing and managing risk areas from company-
wide perspective. The risk assessment committee comprises senior
management, and corporate managers of the Group. Its findings
and recommendations are reported to the executive management
committee from time to time.

INTEGRITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Each of our staff is given clear guidelines and codes of standard in
the staff handbook with integrity being put as the first and foremost
code of conduct. The integrity management committee, a whistle-
blowing-type channel, has been implemented to provide staff
and contractors a channel to report issues which might cause a
significant financial loss to, or an adverse impact on, the image of the
Company. The integrity management committee comprises members
of human resources manager as chairman of the committee, with the
accounting manager and senior manager of quality as members. The
committee reports to the audit committee on an half-yearly basis.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group on a
going concern basis. With the support of the accounting and finance
functions led by the chief financial officer and the finance manager of
the Group, the directors have ensured that the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 are prepared in
accordance with appropriate accounting policies applied consistently
save for those new and amended accounting standards as disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

To the best of knowledge of the directors, there is no uncertainty
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, the directors aim at presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects. Financial information put before the Board for approval by
management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the
directors to make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement
of the external auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements, is set out in pages 80 to 81 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, for services rendered for the year ended
31 December 2012 are set out as follows:

Services rendered
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Audit services EIZ RS 1,005
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members. The
company secretary confirmed that she has complied with all the
qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS, INVESTOR
RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements,
circulars, and press releases, updates on the Group’s developments
are also provided on the Company’s website stated below which is
updated on a timely manner.

Comments and suggestions from shareholders or investors are
welcome through the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of
business at 10/F., Hsin Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2751 8784

(i) by telephone at (852) 2579 8313

(iv) by email at info@synergis.com.hk

Annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear
business days together with detailed agenda is given to shareholders
for the annual general meeting of the Company and 10 clear
business days for all special general meetings of the Company.
Separate resolution is proposed at annual general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of each individual
director.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the company secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The
chairman of meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the
relevant general meeting.

During the year under review, there has no significant change in the
Company’s Memorandum and Bye-laws.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics
and integrity and increasing shareholder value as a whole.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

The Group is a dedicated corporate citizen with a long standing
commitment to Corporate Social Responsibilities (“CSR”). The Board
of Directors, Senior Management and staff are committed to the
highest ethical standards as well as to conducting business in a
responsible manner and in a way that benefits all stakeholders, the
local community and society at large.

The Group has established the CSR policy focusing on the four key
principles:

° Safety and Health
We will be constantly vigilant in improving our safety
performance and ensuring safety in the workplace.

° Caring for the Environment
We will continue to develop and improve our environmental
management practices so as to minimize waste, maximize
efficiencies and reduce our impact on the environment.

° Caring for our People
We will be sensitive to the needs and aspirations of our staff
and equitable in our dealings with them. We will provide a
safe, congenial and healthy working environment and positive
opportunities for growth and advancement.

° Caring for the Community
We will be considerate and open in our dealings with the
communities in which we operate and be sensitive to cultural
diversity. We will make positive and tangible contributions to
assist worthwhile community causes.

In order to formulate and integrate the CSR strategies and policies
of the Group, a Quality Steering Committee (QSC) was formed
comprising the Managing Director, an Executive Director, Director
and Chief Operation Officer, Division Heads and Human Resources
Manager. The committee is also responsible for monitoring the overall
progress and performance of the respective committees responsible
in implementing the various activities and initiatives under the CSR
commitment. The committees include Green Operations Committee;
Quality Management Committee; HR Effectiveness Committee;
Quality Assurance Committee; and Safety and Health Committee.

For the past 10 years, the Group has been awarded a Caring
Company by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services. In November
2012, the Group attained admission to the HKQAA-HSBC-CSR
Advocate Index and officially received the CSR Advocate Mark.
The Index provides quantitative performance metrics for companies
to improve CSR performance and enhance CSR disclosure and
stakeholder communications. The Advocate Mark is in recognition of
the Group’s commitment and dedication to CSR.
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SAFETY AND HEALTH

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment for its employees, stakeholders and subcontractors.

The Group has well-established operation-wide health and safety
policy and standards. The Group has employed three registered
safety officers to implement and manage an Occupational Health
and Safety Management System which has been certified to OHSAS
18001 standards. To achieve full compliance with relevant statutory
and contractual requirements, regular OHS training is provided to the
staff for enhancing their knowledge on safety management. A total of
943.5 hours of safety training were conducted in 2012.

To further develop and promote the safety culture to all levels of staff
of the Group, our recent efforts include:—

° New series of safety inspector training launched in 2012 to all
site in-charges of the Group’s managed property to raise staff
awareness of health and safety issues.

° A Safety Manual, specialized for the contractors, was
published in 2012 and widely distributed in order to ensure the
selected contractors are in line with the Group’s concept of
managing health, safety and quality at work.

° Raising hazard awareness and continual improvement on our
internal safety management system.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

In anticipation of the needs of current and future generations, the
Group is committed to environmental protection. The Group’s
Environmental Management System, which has been certified to
comply with ISO 14001 International Standards, is implemented and
is constantly undergoing refinement and improvement in line with
latest international trends.

To encourage the environmental awareness across the Group, a
Green Operations Committee which is led by the Director of Property
Management is established to help in the implementation of our
Environmental Policy for the Group. The Environmental Policy stating
clearly that the Group is committed to

- The promotion of environmental awareness amongst our staff,
business partners and the community

- Continuously improving environmental performance
- Regulatory compliance

The Group continues to encourage the segregation of recyclables
and to raise our staff and also our residents and users’ awareness
of the importance of environmental protection by joining the Source
Separation of Domestic Waste Competition which is organized
by Environmental Protection Department. The competition aims
to encourage residents to separate waste at source so as to
reduce waste sent for disposal. About 70 properties managed by
Synergis received an exceptional result of 72 awards in 2011/2012
Source Separation of Domestic Waste Competition for outstanding
performance in environmental protection. The Group has adopted
various green initiatives to improve customers’ living standards. The
record-breaking 72 awards we received in this competition reflect our
achievement in creating a green environment for our customers.
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CARING FOR THE PEOPLE

With over 6,000 people in the Group, we strongly believe in
encouraging personal growth in addition to performance. Over the
past year, emphasis has been placed on recruitment, talent retention
and lifelong learning to support our business growth.

The Group aims to be the best employer within the industry providing
a secured, challenging and rewarding work environment for the
employees of the Group. To achieve this goal and ensure the proper
strategies are in place, a Human Resources effectiveness Committee,
comprising Managing Director, Executive Director, HR Manager and
senior operations managers is responsible to developing strategies
and action for building employee satisfaction and loyalty.

In 2012, major people strategies are:
- Enhance staff satisfaction and loyalty.

- Capture staff’s satisfaction level through surveys and feedback
from employee satisfaction survey, exit interview, meetings and
staff activities.

- Adopt competence-based management model to develop and
retain talents for the Company.

- Encourage and support staff to pursue academic advancement
for better career development in the Company.

- Nurture a talent pool to enable a comprehensive HR
succession planning.

As a service-oriented company, our staff are central to our business
success and therefore the Group are attentive to employees’
feedback and voice. The Group has set up different channels and
means to get employee feedback for understanding employees’
career and development needs by conducting biannual staff
satisfaction survey, exit interview and also performance review. These
channels assist the management in identifying gaps and issues in our
business strategy and subsequently tackling them.
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CARING FOR THE PEOPLE (Continued)

Personal growth and development is also a key component of
our talent retention strategy. The Group provides development
opportunities for staff at all levels. These include internal training,
seminars and external training sponsorships. The Group is
committed to providing our staff with high quality training and
actively expands the acceptability of its internal courses in order
to raise staff’'s professional qualifications. In December 2012, we
have successfully received capability approval from The Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
(HKCAAVQ) to offer internal courses equivalent to the Government’s
Qualifications Framework Levels One to Three.

The “Talent Development Program” is designed for cultivating
the high performers across different grades for better career
development in the Group. This program is tailor-made for individuals
and combines project based inputs with mentor coaching and action
learning.

Caring for staff was further augmented over the year with regular
company excursions, staff events and welcoming party for new staff.
A series of staff activities such as mooncake making class, autumn
picnic and BBQ gathering were organized to assist in fostering a
positive work-life balance and maintaining a harmonious working
environment within the Group. Organizational support is given to
company sporting and interests teams, an initiative that inspires
teamwork and a healthy lifestyle.

CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

The Group continues to invest in the local community by supporting
community projects and charitable services through donations and
sponsorships to both charities and industry-related and professional
bodies, as well as organizing volunteer services to care for the needy
and underprivileged.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Synergis
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure in submitting to the
shareholders their report and the consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision
of property and facility management services, interiors and special
projects, security services, cleaning services, laundry services, repair
and maintenance works and trading of products. Particulars of the
principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements, respectively.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 82; the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 83 and
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31 December
2012 are set out in the balance sheets on page 84.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 2.5 HK cents per share (2011: 3.2 HK cents per share)
for the year ended 31 December 2012. Subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting of the
Company, the proposed final dividend will be paid on Thursday, 4
July 2013 to shareholders whose names appear on the registers of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 25 June 2013.

Together with the interim dividend of 2.0 HK cents per share (2011:
1.2 HK cents per share) already paid, total dividends for the year will
amount to 4.5 HK cents per share (2011: 4.4 HK cents per share),
representing a payout ratio of 91% (2011: 91%) on the earnings for
the financial year.

*  for identification purposes only 1€ {4 5/

Synergis Holdings Limited (T2 B R £ E AR A Al*)
(IMFxra)ES(TEF)g([EF2)RARSRRE
REER/EBERAQNGIREMBAR (5 [A£E])H
BT —F+ A=+ BHULEFEE2HGAUHHRE-

FEERK

RRARZEBEBARERBR - ARAMBRATIZEE
¥ BREYERREEERS ERRMHEEKRER
REIRTS B RIRTS ARG EERREIRUAKE
MBS ARRAETEWBRAZFHBED ISR BHE
Bf5E33 °

7RER
SFER B RN BB WA 25 -

REk 2k

AEBBEE T T A=T-HIFEZEER
RERAZHFABmEK FBBEZHFAZEWARE -
AEERARBRZE—=F+=ZA=+—B 28k
MENEBIA 2 BEERAFBR-

EREERAEREE T —F+A=+—HLFE
IRERARBEREE25l (ZF——F: 8RB%E3.2
i) - FRERNARBANERITZ T =FRRAFKA
g LA R BRZREREER -_Z—=F+AMA
(2EHM)RBETR_Z—=ZF"A-Z+THA(EH2)
AR AR RIBECR B M 2 R -

ERIDIRE 2 PR EEREE2.00 (ZT—F : 8K
EEE2ML) AFEZRBAREE ATREELS (=
T——F  BREELAM)  BARMEERE 2 BF 2 RS
LA % (ZF——F:91%)



RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (Continued)

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, the registers of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 20 June 2013 to Tuesday, 25 June
2013, both days inclusive (Hong Kong Time), during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend (subject to members’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting), all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 19
June 2013 (Hong Kong Time). The principal share registrars of the
Company is Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited at 26
Burnaby Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 85 and in note 24 to the financial
statements, respectively.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years/period and for the year
ended 31 December 2012 is set out on page 134. This summary
does not form part of the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2012,
calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$89,002,000 (31 December 2011:
HK$82,882,000).
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Directors’ Report
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) although there is no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2012 and upto the date of this report were:

CHAIRMAN
Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai (re-designated as Chairman on 1 July 2012)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fan Cheuk Hung (Managing Director)
Dr. Catherine Chu

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tenniel Chu
Dr. Barry John Buttifant
Dr. Kenneth Chu Ting Kin (resigned on 1July 2012)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
Dr. Kan Fook Yee

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong
Mr. David Yu Hon To

The biographical details of the directors of the Company who are in
office as at the date of this report are set out on pages 24 to 30 of
this annual report.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Tenniel Chu, Mr.
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan and Dr. Kan Fook Yee shall retire by rotation
but, being eligible, have offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting of the Company. Save for
the aforesaid, the other remaining directors of the Company would
continue in office.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
and considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent in accordance with the terms of the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The term of non-executive directors including the independent non-
executive directors of the Company has been fixed at 3 years and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company offering themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting of the
Company have entered into a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company and their associates in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

EERTRAENARAREEEEE
B -HERORESTHER 2ER
599

R-F——F+-_A=+—H REEHFRHBEHKRH
(IEF LG G ) FB2EARRATHFE 2 ELM
Frece i@?ﬂ*‘;im%ﬁﬁlJM]‘ff‘JrFﬁ%ZZLﬁ?*??}\%%
ETEFR P ZEESTR ([REFR ) ABAAR

NP ARBEEERITREH L EE 25 %%}\b’/\
AR AT EEEE (E&REH LA HRGIFEXV
BB MR ARRARR D RIESFTHEE 2B AR T

RAR B RAERBER D 28

Percentage

of interest

Number of in the

Numbe of underlying issued share

Name of directors Capacity shares held shares held Total capital

EE AT

BB ZHE A 2 R &

EEEB &% BEZROHE BRHEE FoEy Bt

(Note (i) (Note (i)

(PREEG)) (B &E())

Wilfred Wong Ying Wai Beneficial owner 14,420,000 2,000,000 16,420,000 4.95%
THE BE=nlEAA

Fan Cheuk Hung Beneficial owner 7,616,000 3,000,000 10,616,000 3.20%
B BE=nlEAA

Catherine Chu Beneficial owner - 900,000 900,000 0.27%
R BE=nlEAA

Tenniel Chu Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%
KSR EnlEA

Barry John Buttifant Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%
=Y EnlEA

Stephen Ip Shu Kwan Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%
k92 BE=nEAA

Kan Fook Yee Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%
EEEES EnlEA

Wong Tsan Kwong Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%
By EnlEA

David Yu Hon To Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%

AEE

EafEdA

FEBEEEEERAR
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EEETRE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BEERTHAZRARATRERE EE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN NG HEROCRESTHEEZESR
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND K#%& (&

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND RAREIR M, RAEERD 2 T A (%)

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Notes: EE:

()  The interest in the underlying shares represented share options (i) ARG 2 BEEREBARTR _ZE=FALA TN
granted pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the B PR 2 BB AR RERT BIPT IR T 2 BB AR - PRI T 2 BB AR
Company on 19 September 2003. Details of share option granted BFHEET:
are set out below:

Number of share

options held

as at

31 December Exercise price

Name of directors 2012 per share Exercisable period
(HKS) (dd/mm/yyyy)

R=T—=F

t=A=+—H _ _

EENA FrEBERESR BRITEE T
(HBHT) (B R/ %)
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai 400,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2015
THE 400,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2015
400,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2015
400,000 0.82 25/09/2013 — 24/09/2015
400,000 0.82 25/09/2014 — 24/09/2015
Fan Cheuk Hung 300,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2015
Bt S Iff 300,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2015
300,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2015
300,000 0.82 25/09/2013 — 24/09/2015
300,000 0.82 25/09/2014 — 24/09/2015
500,000 0.76 01/09/2012 — 31/08/2015
500,000 0.76 01/09/2013 — 31/08/2015
500,000 0.76 01/09/2014 — 31/08/2015
Catherine Chu 180,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2015
Py 180,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2015
180,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2015
180,000 0.82 25/09/2013 - 24/09/2015
180,000 0.82 25/09/2014 — 24/09/2015
Tenniel Chu 100,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2013
KSR 100,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2013
100,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2013
Barry John Buttifant 100,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2013
£ IR 100,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2013
100,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2013
§tephen lp Shu Kwan 100,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2013
o3P 100,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2013
100,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2013
Ka@FOOk Yee 100,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2013
ke 100,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2013
100,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2013
Wong Tsan Kwong 100,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2013
HEK 100,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2013
100,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2013
David Yu Hon To 100,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2013
BEE 100,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2013
100,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2013

(i)  There were 332,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company inissue (i) W-Z—-——"F+ - A=+—-—H AQAH*E
at 31 December 2012. 332,000,000% B2 #17 & A%
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EEEHRE

BEERTHEABRAATRERE LE
MG HERORESFFHEEZER
KRB (#)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES IN ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2012, the interests of Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai, —ZE— "¢+ - A=+—H THELE K=AEL
Dr. Catherine Chu and Dr. Barry John Buttifant in the shares and R 2§ L1E1#5%E T ¥JHsin Chong Construction Group
underlying shares of Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (‘HCCG”)  Ltd. (FFE&EEEARAA*) ([HELE ) BD K

R R R RBEBE D AR 2t B

were as follows: R HE R
Number of Approximate
Numbe of underlying percentage of
Name of directors Capacity shares held shares held Total shareholding
HEBT
BEZH BRAz S
EEEB 514 BEZROHE ROHE @st Bk
(Note (i)
(Bt ()
Wilfred Wong Ying Wali Beneficial owner 20,000,000 5,000,000 25,000,000 2.64%
FHEE EmEAA
Interest of controlled 143,000,000 496,215,686 639,215,686 67.40%
corporations (Note (ii))
REhEE R CH3EGi))
Catherine Chu Beneficial owner 790,000 2,000,000 2,790,000 0.29%
KER EmfAA
Barry John Buttifant Beneficial owner - 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.34%

KN

ERmBEEA

*  for identification purposes only (£ £ 5l

MEEREEARAT

B H
20124 5



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES IN ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

Except for 496,215,686 underlying shares of HCCG held by Mr.
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai as disclosed in Note (i), the interest in the
underlying shares of HCCG represented share options granted
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by HCCG on
22 May 2008. Details of share options held are as follow:

Number of shares

Directors’ Refort

EEERE

EERTRAENRARAREEEEE
B HERORESTHER Z2ER

KRB (#)

=
m

IS

/7,

RN RIAEESE B Iy RARRER ) 2 i R
)

P T Z 12 5t A 55 H 2 496,215,686/ & & 1 A8 B IR
o CRLME RGN EER ) S 1087 & 2 AR Z HEe1T
BREFSEZENR_ETZNEFAA-_T _ARMZR
IR AT B3R 2 SRR - PR R AR Z RIS AT

Exercise price

Name of directors options held per share Exercisable period
(HK$) (dd/mm/yyyy)

BERR FrEBERESE BRITEE TR
(E¥ETT) (B/A/%)

Wilfred Wong Ying Wai 2,500,000 213 01/01/2009 — 22/05/2018
FRE 2,500,000 2.13 01/01/2010 - 22/05/2018
Catherine Chu 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2011 — 03/12/2019
KeR 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2012 — 03/12/2019
Barry John Buttifant 1,200,000 2.13 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
£S5 1,000,000 1.70 26/04/2012 — 25/04/2021
1,000,000 1.70 26/04/2013 — 25/04/2021

Pursuant to an agreement dated 27 July 2011 entered into by
Hsin Chong Property Holdings Limited (“HCPHL”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of HCCG, with, among others, Neo Summit
Limited ("Neo Summit”), a company is deemed to be controlled
by Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai under the SFO, HCPHL acquired
a land site at a consideration of HK$1,828 million. HCCG issued
143,000,000 shares and convertible bonds in the principal amount
of HK$759,210,000 as part of the consideration for a land site
in Tieling, Liaoning Province, China on 18 November 2011. The
convertible bonds are convertible into a maximum of 496,215,686
shares at an initial conversion price of HK$1.53 per share. Mr.
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai is deemed to be interested in these
underlying shares under Part XV of the SFO.

*  for identification purposes only (£ £ 5l

(i)

RIEH & & s 2 2 & B A FHsin Chong Property
Holdings Limited#T & EER AR A E ([3FEHE
PERg ] ) B (E R B E) Neo Summit Limited (EI& &R
AR ([FE]  RIEFES KBS GIER AR TE
FREESZAG) MR =_E——FLA=++H7]
32 W shaET 8 M E T AR LAAUB B #51,828,000,000
TWHE—EA - EEENR T —F+—A+TN
H #17143,000,000/% & 17 & 2 884 # 759,210,000
L2 AR ES  EATREELAEHE —BAM I
HRE - R ES AR Y2 IR E SR A E1.537T
AR %496,215,6860% %19 © iR IEEH & E S 1E 5
EXVED TRELEWRBRZEEERND P IEEE

s
m °
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EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN THE DEBENTURES OF
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2012, the interests of Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai in
the debentures of HCCG are as follows:

EERTRABNRARAREEEEE
B - HERORESTHERE Z2ER

KRB (#)

RARRRBEBESF 2R
—E——f+-A=+—R EREEERETIIHE
BEES R

Approximate
percentage of

interest

Amount of Number of in the issued

Name of director Capacity debenture underlying shares share capital

HEBRITREZ

EEnR g4 BEHFSHE HEROHAE BHEEa It

Wilfred Wong Ying Wai Interest of controlled corporation HK$759,210,000 496,215,686 52.32%
THE RimrE R P& #5759,210,0007T

Note: B -

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by HCPHL with Neo Summit
on 27 July 2011 to acquire the land site in Tieling, Liaoning Province,
China, HCCG issued convertible bonds in the principle amount of
HK$759,210,000 as part of the consideration to Neo Summit. The
convertible bonds are convertible into a maximum of 496,215,686
shares of HCCG at an initial conversion price of HK$1.53 per share. Mr.
Wong is deemed to be interested in these debentures of the associated
corporation of the Company under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

FEBEEEEERAR
20124 ¥R

BB EMERRENER -_Z——F+ A -+ HK
BRREEAHBERMMAI NGBS FTEEERTASH
7378 %759,210,0007T 2 FJ HA I AE 25 VB 7% ) 3 16 S A+ A0 &6
DRAE - AHARES AR T L RESREE1.53T LB
2 %496,215,686/ 31 8 2 &M - RIFFE H LA G HHI 5
XVER - ERAEFR BN AR RIEM AR Z 2 S E AT HEE

Eo

BENFEEEN RZE——F+=_A=+—8 %2
AEERITRARNES 2BEABRENARRREME
AREOEE (& RES MIEGRHIFEXVEL) 2B - 48
Bl MBS HEB TR IORR M LSRN IRIEE
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BEBFBAZAER ARAR-FE=FAA+H
FURM —IE AR ARET B (BT BI)) - IRYE E A28
EUERTATREABERES B AEMT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 19 September
2003 (the “Option Scheme”) pursuant to the shareholders’
resolutions. Details of the Option Scheme as required to be disclosed
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) SUMMARY OF THE OPTION SCHEME (1) BREASZHE
(@) Purpose of the Option Scheme (a) BR#ESEZEB

(b)

The Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of
recognising and motivating the contribution of the Eligible
Persons (as defined below) to the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as defined
below).

Participants of the Option Scheme

Eligible persons entitled to participate in the Option
Scheme (the “Eligible Persons”) include:

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any entity
in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);
including any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and
any employee employed or to be employed by the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of Ching;

(ii) any non-executive director (including any
independent non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

BRESEEERERABEERAL (E
ERTX)BARE R/ E M EA T
B/ REMEEER (TR TOELE
B o

BRESEZ2REAL
A2EBRETECAERAL ([REBA
T eHE:

(b)

) ARFEEMHERR KARAK
HEMMB AR A EMRA R
ERER(IREBER]) ZEMFRE
(TmERERE)  8FAAR - HE
AT A R SR AT IR E B B8 2 (I #
TES  RARAIEEMHBEAFHL
EAREERE (THRABIXTEARK
ME)ERAXSRERAZEAREE:

(i) ARE EEFAMBARREAIREER
BZEMZENITES (BREEMAELIE
HITES)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(1) SUMMARY OF THE OPTION SCHEME
(Continued)

(b) Participants of the Option Scheme
(Continued)

(i)  any shareholder of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who has,
in the opinion of the Board, made contribution to
the business growth of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(ivy any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(vy any supplier of goods and/or services to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(vi) any business collaborator, business consultant,
joint venture or business partner, or technical,
financial, legal and other professional advisers
engaged by the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(vi) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the directors or the substantial shareholders
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity who has, in the opinion of the
Board, made contribution to the business growth
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; or

(vii) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the
Board, the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects) of which includes
any of the abovementioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Option Scheme, the options
may be granted to any company wholly owned by one or
more of the above Eligible Persons.

BRRESE ()

BIRETE 2R (8)

(b) EBREFEZSHEANLT (&)

(i) $Qi~ﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁ%
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REAN MEFERAHERAR H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(1)

SUMMARY OF THE OPTION SCHEME

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Maximum number of shares available
for issue under the Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares available for further
grant of options under the Option Scheme shall not
exceed 30,050,000 shares of the Company, representing
9.05% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible
Person under the Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in
any 12-month period which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of Shares already issued to
such Eligible Person under all the options previously
granted to him/her which have been exercised and,
issuable to him/her under all the options previously
granted to him/her which are for the time being
subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless being approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in
the 12-month period upto and including the date of the
proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue for the time being; and

(i)  the aggregate value of which, based on the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
the proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such proposed grant of option shall be subject to
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting in which all connected persons for the
time being of the Company (if any) (except where any
connected person intends to vote against the proposed
grant of option and his/her intention to do so has been
stated in the circular) shall abstain from voting at such
general meeting and at which any vote taken shall be
taken on a poll.

Directors’ Refort
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(1) SUMMARY OF THE OPTION SCHEME
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Period for and payment on acceptance
of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by
an Eligible Person (and by no other person except the
Eligible Person) in respect of all the Shares for which the
offer is made. Acceptance shall be made by such Eligible
Person by signing and returning the duplicate of the offer
letter together with the payment of a consideration of
HK$1.00 for such grant to the Company within the time
period specified in the offer letter.

The basis of determining the
subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted
under the Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board and notified to each grantee and shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of a Share;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date on which an offer for grant of an option (the “Offer
Date”) is made to an Eligible Person; and (jii) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the Offer Date which must be a
business day, provided that the subscription price shall
be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option
before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option
must be held before exercise pursuant to the Option
Scheme. The commencement date of an option period
shall be specified by the Board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life

The Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on 19 September 2003,
the date of adoption of the Option Scheme, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the
Option Scheme.

MEEREEARAT
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(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) B AESTE (@)
(2) MOVEMENTS IN OPTIONS ) HEikEzZE

Details of movements in the share options under the Option
Scheme and the share options outstanding at the beginning

Directors’ Refort

BRI B TR 8
E-E——Ft-A=+—BIEEIKRTER

EEERE

HBERRFEIRE

and the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out as follows: ARiEL S
Number of Changes during the year Number of
options held as FR2E options held as Exercise
at 1 January at 31 December price per
Name of grantees Date of grant 2012 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2012 share Exercisable period
ARAER RiAH RZB-ZF Bt fix:3 P B R=2-=F SROREE &8
(da/mm/yyyy) -A-H +=B=+-H (HKS$) (dd/mm/Ayyyy)
(8/A/%) =212 BEZBRE (%) (8/A/%)
BREHE %A
Directors
f
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai 25/09/2009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0.820  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
TR 25/09/2009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0.820  25/09/2013 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0.820  25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
Fan Cheuk Hung 25/09/2009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
Bl 25/09/2009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820  25/09/2013 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820  25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
01/09/2011 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.760  01/09/2012 - 31/08/2015
01/09/2011 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.760  01/09/2013 - 31/08/2015
01/09/2011 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.760  01/09/2014 - 31/08/2015
Catherine Chu 25/09/2009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
RER 25/09/2009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0.820  25/09/2013 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0.820  25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
Tenniel Chu 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
REE 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2013
Barry John Buttifant 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
EHA 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2013
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
0 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25/09/2011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2013
Kan Fook Yee 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
et 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2013
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BREE (m)
(2) MOVEMENTS IN OPTIONS (Continued) @ BREZEH (5
Number of Changes during the year Number of
options held as FR2E options held as Exercise
at 1 January at 31 December price per
Name of grantees Date of grant 2012 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2012 share Exercisable period
ARAER REBH RZB-ZF it Eix:3 %% B RZ2-ZF SBROEE fiti 2
(dd/mmyyyy) -B-H +=A=1-H (HK9) (dd/mm/yyyy)
(8/A/%) =21 BEZBRE (B%T) (8/A/%)
BREYE %A
Wong Tsan Kwong 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
BRX 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2013
David YuHon To 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
BEE 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2013
Employees (in aggregate) 25/09/2009 870,000 - - (150,000) - 720,000 0.820  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
&8 (%) 25/09/2009 870,000 - - (150,000) - 720,000 0.820  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 870,000 - - (150,000) - 720,000 0.820  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 870,000 - - (150,000) - 720,000 0.820  25/09/2013 - 24/09/2015
25/09/2009 870,000 - - (150,000) - 720,000 0.820  25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.99  25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0996  25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 099  25/09/2012 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.996  25/09/2013 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.996  25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
07/06/2011 750,000 - - (420,000) - 330,000 0.860  07/06/2012 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 750,000 - - (420,000) - 330,000 0.860  07/06/2013 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 750,000 - - (420,000) - 330,000 0.860  07/06/2014 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 750,000 - - (420,000) - 330,000 0.860  07/06/2015 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 750,000 - - (420,000) - 330,000 0.860  07/06/2016 - 06/06/2017
16,100,000 - - (2,850,000 - 13,250,000

(3) FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED Q) ER-HBRENATE

The fair value of share options granted during the year ended HE-_T——F+-_A=*+— EI\JJ:iJE RERE
31 December 2012 is set out in note 10 to the financial BREN AR BRI B RKRMTE0 -
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

During the year, the Company has a share option scheme adopted
on 19 September 2003 pursuant to which options may be granted,
inter alia, to directors of the Company. Details of the Share Option
Scheme and their respective movements are set out in the
paragraphs entitled “Share Option Scheme” above. Further details
of options granted and/or shares allotted or transferred to the
directors of the Company are disclosed in the paragraph entitled
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and lts
Associated Corporations” and note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Dr. Kenneth Chu Ting
Kin was the director of Mission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL”).
The principal businesses of MHGCL and its subsidiaries (other than
the Group) comprise, among other things, property and facility
management services (the “Excluded Business”). As such, Dr.
Kenneth Chu Ting Kin (upto 30 June 2012) was regarded as having
interest in these competing businesses of the Group. The Excluded
Business was operated and managed by MHGCL with independent
management and administration. On this basis, the Directors believe
that the Group is capable of carrying on its property and facility
management business independently of the Excluded Business and
at arm’s length from the Excluded Business. As the size of Excluded
Business is insignificant when compared with the size of the principal
business of the Group, it is unlikely that the Excluded Business may
compete with the property and facility business of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company were
interested in any business apart from the Group’s business which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
Directors’ biographical details since the date of last interim report are
set out as follows:

Mr. Wilfred Wong Ying Wai
. ceased to act as the chairman of the Court and Council of the
Hong Kong Baptist University

o ceased to act as a deputy to The National People’s Congress
of the People’s Republic of China

Dr. Barry John Buttifant

° being a person distinguished in eminence and by attainments,
Dr. Buttifant was admitted to the degree of Honorary Doctorate
of Business Administration (Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh
Napier University in February 2013

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan

° resigned as an independent non-executive director of Goldpoly
New Energy Holdings Limited, Milan Station Holdings Limited,
Viva China Holdings Limited and Yangtze China Investment

Limited

Mr. David Yu Hon To

° appointed as independent non-executive director of China
Resources Gas Group Limited with effect from 28 December
2012

Updated biographical details of the Company’s directors are set out
on pages 24 to 30 of this annual report.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

On 30 November 2012, the Company issued 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
ISP Business. The convertible preference shares are convertible into
the ordinary shares at HK$0.75 per share subject to satisfaction of
the minimum public float requirements under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, none of the convertible
preference shares was converted nor redeemed.

Save as above and other than the share option scheme described
in the paragraph titled “Share Option Scheme” above and in note
10 to the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights at 31
December 2012. There was no issue or exercise of any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended
31 December 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participated in mandatory provident fund schemes in
Hong Kong which are defined contribution plan generally funded
through payments to trustee-administrated funds. Particulars of
the retirement schemes are set out in note 2.16(c) to the financial
statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the
following substantial shareholders (other than persons who were
directors and chief executive of the Company) in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Dlrectors Refort
eRE

BRI E
AEES AT BRI Fi\?ril ZE Bl A—HES
PSR AR ES (302 R HBUR G 8- R tRat

EIFIBH N B REMIE2.16(0) ©

FERRRAQATARG KABER G %
EZHEZRAE

RIZ——F+-A=+—H BRESFLRPEEINE
3361I7:<$ AATHFEZERMMLE T ETERR
(R0 AVE S RATHBERIN) KA R R RABRAR
hHAZEEISORRINT

RARRRIRD REER D 2B

(A) Ordinary Shares (A) Ti@ER

Number of Percentage of

ordinary shares interest in

of HK$0.10 the issued

Name of shareholders Capacity each held share capital

(Note (i) (Note (ii)

BHEEREE

AB%0.10T 2 HEBTRAK

RERE B g4 ZERHE ZERBADTHE

(B=EG)) OB EE (i) )

The estate of the deceased Dr. David Chu Shu Ho Interests of controlled 226,963,213 68.36%
EMAEERE L 2EE corporations
REEE R

Upper Luck Holdings Limited (“Upper Luck”)  Interests of controlled 226,963,213 68.36%
corporations
REEE R

MHGCL Interests of controlled 226,963,213 68.36%
= corporations
REEE R

Carrick Worldwide Limited (“Carrick”) Interests of controlled 169,116,777 50.94%
corporations
REEE R

Beneficial owner 57,846,436 17.42%

EmfEAA

HCCG Interests of controlled 169,116,777 50.94%
HEEE corporations
REEE S

Smart Lane Holdings Limited (“Smart Lane”)  Beneficial owner 169,116,777 50.94%

ERBEEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(A) Ordinary Shares (Continued)
Notes:

U

These shares were held directly by Carrick and Smart
Lane as to 57,846,436 shares and 169,116,777 shares
respectively. Smart Lane was wholly-owned by HCCG
which was in turn owned as to 39.64% of shares in issue
by Carrick. Carrick is a wholly-owned subsidiary and hence
a controlled corporation of MHGCL. MHGCL is a wholly-
owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation
of Upper Luck. Upper Luck is under the estate of the
deceased Dr. David Chu Shu Ho. By virtue of the SFO, each
of Upper Luck, MHGCL, Carrick and HCCG were deemed

FERRRERATRG REERG %
ﬁZi‘EﬁéK/AF (&)

KRR B AD RARBER D 2 i B ()

(A) EZ@EBR (®)

B & -

0] ZE WD 5 B # Carrick &2 Smart LaneH % #
57,846,436/ % 1) 5 169,116,777 A% 17
Smart Lanefi 31 8 &4 2 & A - 375 & &8
Fh Carrick# B H 2 217 1739.64% ° Carrick/&
BN EMBAR MAHIRAR - mEx
AlfAUpper Luck® &% A B AHEZER A A
Upper LuckBE A SE L2 IBE - RIEFE
% N BRI S 1§41 - Upper Luck ~ B 5% ~ Carrick & 3
EXES AWR AMASmart Laneit A 2 A —1it
169,116,777 A% 17 i B fe 25 o

to be interested in the same lot of 169,116,777 shares held
by Smart Lane.

R-TE——F+-A=+—H AQRBHET
332,000,0000% & i 1% ©

There were 332,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in (i)

issue at 31 December 2012.

(i)

(B) Convertible Preference Shares (B) FIEIZBER®
Number of
convertible Percentage of
preference shares interest in
of HK$0.10 the issued
Name of shareholders Capacity each held share capital
(Note (i) (Note (i)
BESREE
10,107 2 .
AERE L HERITRE
REEH 51 BABE ZREEDL
(BE&EG)) OB =EGi) )
The estate of the deceased Interests of controlled 58,666,667 100%
Dr. David Chu Shu Ho oorporaﬂons
BRI RIE L ZEE REEEEE
Upper Luck Interests of controlled 58,666,667 100%
corporations
REEE R
MI—LGCL Interests of controlled 58,666,667 100%
S __corporations
LR R
Carrick Interests of controlled 58,666,667 100%
__corporations
ZiEEEER
HCCG Interests of controlled 58,666,667 100%
FEgiE corporahons
S AE RS
Smart Lane Beneficial owner 58,666,667 100%
EnsAA
EEREERRAF
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(B) Convertible Preference Shares (Continued)
Notes:

(i) The Company issued and allotted 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares to Smart Lane on 30 November 2012.
By virtue of the SFO, each of Upper Luck, MHGCL, Carrick
and HCCG were deemed to be interested in the same lot
of 58,666,667 convertible preference shares held by Smart
Lane.

(i) There were 58,666,667 convertible preference shares of the
Company in issue at 31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2012, no other interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company announced the acquisition of the
interiors and special projects business (the “ISP Business”) from
HCCG at a consideration of HK$224 million. The consideration
was satisfied by way of cash of HK$180 million and allotment
of 58,666,667 convertible preference shares at an issue price of
HK$0.75 per share at completion on 30 November 2012. As a
term of the sale and purchase agreement, the vendors had given
a guarantee that the aggregate amount of the net profit or loss
after tax of the ISP Business will not be less than HK$28 million for
the financial year ended 31 December 2012. If the actual profit is
HK$30 million or more, the Company will allot and issue 21,333,333
convertible preference shares to the vendor or its nominee. Base
on the management accounts of the ISP Business, the actual
profit exceeds HK$30 million, the Company will issue 21,333,333
convertible preference shares within 30 days of the date of guarantee
certificate to be issued. In view of the achievement of the profit
guaranteed, the independent non-executive directors considered that
HCCG had fulfilled its obligations under the guarantee.

HCCG is a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
transaction constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the connected transaction mentioned
above.

Dlrectors Refort
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company and/or
its subsidiaries had entered into (or continued to be party to) the
following continuing connected transactions which are subject to
annual review and reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

(A) TENANCY AGREEMENT AND CARPARK

AGREEMENTS

Synergis Management Services Limited (‘SMS”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant entered into the
Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements. The ownership
of Hsin Chong Center had been changed from Deventer
Limited (“Deventer”) to Cogent Spring Limited (“Cogent
Spring”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of HCCG, pursuant to the
assignment made between Deventer and Cogent Spring on 4
July 2011. Cogent Spring is the landlord of Hsin Chong Center
as from 4 July 2011 and the tenancy agreement entered into
between Deventer and SMS on 17 December 2010 had been
assigned to Cogent Spring on 4 July 2011. The annual cap for
the Tenancy Agreement and the Carpark Agreements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 was HK$1,800,000. Details of
the transactions were disclosed in the announcement dated 17
December 2010 of the Company.

BEERERS
REE_ZT——F+_A=T—HLEFERN KR
FSRERBR 75uTiTﬁ'J/AL?L?ﬁfEE‘J%14A§

2 EERERFRATORAMERS (SBRBHF
RHBZRHF)
A MEBRREES R

ARBEENBRARFEETERBAERARA ([F
EEERS]) (EAAR)IVHAERREREES
15 3% ° 1R ¥ Deventer Limited ( [Deventer | ) 251 &
52 M B 2 7 Cogent Spring Limited ([ Cogent
SprlngJ) ff__itﬁEEuTiZTzﬁm *EEI
FR 0 2 ¥ B #E B Deventeri® # Z Cogent  Spring ©
Cogent Spring& :§**¢tﬂlﬂ]ﬁﬁiﬁ¥ﬁ%¢
2 % F - TDeventerfi T E B RN T —
¢+:H+tE§Tﬁ2$ﬂfT§%u Eb’(\_f——i
+ AV BE# ECogent Spring EHZE_—T— 4
T AT HBUEFENHERZLREESHE
FE LR A %1,800,0007T - BER HFBERA
REI—_E—ZTF+_A+tBzRHREE-

Nature and extent of

Connected person(s)
BEAL

Date of agreement(s)

HHEAH

Terms

R

Annual  the connected
Particulars consideration  person’s interest
e FERE BEAIEZMEREE

Deventer (upto 4 July 2011) and
Cogent Spring (as from 4 July
2011) as landlords

Deventer (upto 4 July 2011) and
Cogent Spring (as from 4 July
2011) as landlords

Tenancy Agreement dated
17 December 2010

Two Carpark Agreements
dated 1 April 2005

3 years from 1 January 2011

on monthly term commencing

to 31 December 2013

from 1 April 2005

Deventer (EE-F——%F A#A-Z-Z4+=-f ®H-ZE—F-F-HZ
+ AW H) & Cogent Spring ++H Z%ﬁfﬁfmfk ZE-=F+tZA=1—
(B=F—F B AE=F
Al Hi)?%%f

Deventer (EE-F——F AHA-STRENA-A B-ETRFMA—HK
+ AMAE) &Cogent Spring ZMHEESBE AR &R

(B=F——%tAmAR)

Lease of portion of 5th Floor HK$1,347,333.00
and portion of 10th Floor of
Hsin Chong Center, 107-
109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong

Lease of 11 car parking HK$258,704.00

spaces located in Hsin

Chong Center

HEBEREXA107E1095%
FERLSENBHEER
10 R EE

#1,347,333.007T

MALRHERLZ1E
JABAL

7 #058,704.007T

Deventer and Cogent Spring are
wholly owned subsidiaries of
HCCG who is a substantial
shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company.
Hence, Deventer and Cogent
Spring are connected persons
under the Listing Rules.

Deventer£ECogent Spring#3 4
MEEEN2EMBAR &
EREARDANEERER
PRI R - Bt - Deventerf
Cogent Spring& BRI T
HEEAT




CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Directors’ Refort

EEEgRE

HEBERXS (|

(B) GENERAL BUSINESS SERVICES AGREEMENT  (B) —MEERS Wz
The Company entered into a General Business Services AR HEHEEETY —REBERS B &
Agreement with HCCG pursuant to which the Group is the b AEEAREHEN - HE_T—Z_F+_H
service provider. The annual cap for the General Business =T —HIFE —REGREHZEIFELRR
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2012 7 #59,500,0007T c — M EBRERZ 5 27 BERA
was HK$9,500,000. Details of the General Business Services RAIZEZENF+_A+HE=ZE—F A+
Transaction were disclosed in the announcements dated 10 = Ird/N A §
December 2009 and 10 February 2011 of the Company.
Nature and extent of
Annual  the connected
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  person’s interest
BEAL e A=k R FHiE FERE MBEALEZMEREE
HCCG General Business Agreement 3 years from 1 January 2010 provision of property and HK$7,047,556.33  HCCG is a substantial
dated 10 December 2009 to 31 December 2012 facility management shareholder and controlling
services, cleaning services shareholder of the Company
and miscellaneous services and hence, a connected
by relevant members of the person under the Listing
Group to relevant members Rules.
of HCCG
MEgE FHA-ZEAET-ATE A-Z-ZF-A-AZ-% FEEEERERAMMERS BU7047560BT HELERFRANEERRER
Z—REBRBGE —ZETZAZT-B BH  ERBRELARRENER BRER - BMALTRATH
=F REERRS FERG R BEATL-
AR
The General Business Services Agreement has been renewed —MEERBHBER =T ——FNLA=Z+LHE
on 27 September 2012 for 3 years from 1 January 2013 to H-HZFE—=F—A—BHEZZT—AFT=A
31 December 2015. Details of which were disclosed in the =—t—R AH=F -AMFERBEHA-_ZT—=
announcement dated 27 September 2012. FANAZ+HEHZAHERE-
(C) TENDER SERVICES AGREEMENT (C) RIZARFS 1ok
The Company entered into the Tender Services Agreement RZE——ZF+—A=1TH ARaEFELER]
with HCCG on 30 November 2012 pursuant to which the URERB B B ESERE KR AEER
HCCG Group will provide tender services to the Group. The HEERE - B2 —_Z——F+_-_A=+—HIF
annual cap for the Tender Services Agreement for the year B WIRRBS N EE LR A7 %1,000,000,000
ended 31 December 2012 was HK$1,000,000,000. Details of LR SHBRARBBHHA-ZT——FHLA+H
the transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the ZAmEBBAZTE——F+AZ T NBZBEK
Company dated 10 September 2012 and circular dated 26 PR
October 2012.
Nature and extent of
Annual  the connected
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  person’s interest
BEAL HEAES 3 #FHiE FERE BEALEZMERGEE
HCCG Tender Services Agreement  upto 31 December 2014 To provide tender services to HK$265,508,333.54  HCCG is a connected person
dated 30 November 2012 Group under the Listing Rules.
mEEE AA-S——F1+—-A EE-TF mAKERERZRS B #065,508,333.54  RELTRA MELER
ZTHZRIERBHE +-A=1+-H BEAL

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(D)

BFERERS (#)

SUPPORTING SERVICES AGREEMENT D) >IEMRS Hha=
The Company entered into the Supporting Services Agreement RNZE——F+—A=+H ARArHEFELE
with HCCG on 30 November 2012 pursuant to which the YRR B G B EEEEBESRAKER
HCCG Group will provide supporting services (which mainly HEERE (EEZRENER ©2 0E RE-
involve staff costs in health, safety, quality, environmental, plant, HWEE IE WwREE BEFREREKRER
surveying, site administration, building services and special EETIRA) HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—H1t
projects, etc) to the Group. The annual cap for the Supporting FE IERREHEOFE LR AE19,200,000
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2012 T RGABRARRBHA-ZS——F LA T+H
was HK$9,200,000. Details of the transactions were disclosed ZAMEBBAZE——F T+ AT NBZBEK
in the announcement of the Company dated 10 September R o
2012 and circular dated 26 October 2012.
Nature and extent of
Annual  the connected
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  person’s interest
BEAL HEAH % #B EERE BEALERMEREE
HCCG Supporting Services upto 31 December 2014 To provide supporting services ~ HK$180,761.00  HCCG is a connected person
Agreement dated 30 to Group under the Listing Rules.
November 2012
il=L-dc AA-ZT—-F+-F EE-T-NF+=A mAEBRETIRRE #%180,761.00r  RIELMHRA FELER
=Bz IERERE =t+-A BiEALe

The directors (including the independent non-executive
directors) of the Company have reviewed and confirmed that all
the continuing connected transactions mentioned in (A) to (D)
above conducted in the year were entered into on the following
basis:
(@ in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

)

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
these transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group as above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of the continuing connected transactions mentioned in (A) to
(D) above.

N (BRBIIFNTES) CEHARER
FAZED)RAAARFEETHNMARERERS
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 36.2% (31 December 2011:
44.1%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue attributable to
the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 14.7%
(81 December 2011: 21.4%) of the Group’s total revenue for the
year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the
year.

None of the directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital), had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2012 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

No donation was made by the Group for charitable and other
purposes during the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK$55,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended.

PUBLIC FLOAT

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
of knowledge of its directors.

AUDITOR

The retiring auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, has
expressed its willingness to offer for re-appointment. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the auditor of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the
directors to fix its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Wilfred Wong Ying Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013

Dlrectors Refort
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BWIZEEMRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuada with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Synergis
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 133, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

* for identification purposes only (£ {4 5
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

& A4S L

e EER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
E—E——FEf =+ —HIFE

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

B = BETT BT

Revenue Wz 5 908,460 678,810

Cost of sales SHE KA (774,750) (572,902)

Gross profit EX 133,710 105,908

Other income H At g A 2,927 2,850

General and administrative expenses — B RATERF X (110,070) (87,872

Interest expenses B 6 (573) =

Profit before taxation B 75 B A 7 25,994 20,886

Taxation I8 11 (7,332) (4,909)

Profit for the year F N Al 18,662 15,977
Profit attributable to: SR R

Equity holders of the Company RARREREA 18,689 16,001

Non-controlling interests FEFERRAE = (27) (24)

18,662 15,977

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZF (L) 14 5.6 4.8

Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRREERT (BB 14 5.6 4.8

Dividends % 2 13 16,940 14,608




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SETHEHWANRE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
EE——FEf = —HIFE

2012 2011
—E—C—F —ET——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year FRIEF 18,662 15,977
Other comprehensive income: HibZEIKA :
Exchange differences on translating foreign BINEBMEEE ZEN 8
operations 52 379
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEBRAERE 18,714 16,356
Total comprehensive income attributable to: BEZEBAELE:
Equity holders of the Company RARIRERE A 18,741 16,368
Non-controlling interests FEE R A 2 (27) (12)
18,714 16,356

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012



Balance Sheets

BEE&ER

As at 31 December 2012
R-ZFE——ZFfZH=+—H

Group Company
r& b NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-C-f —T——F —E-CF —T——fF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i zE BT BETT BT BETT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VEN G 15 13,738 14,630 - -
Investment properties REME 15 3,090 2,680 - =
Intangible assets EREE 16 66,426 = - =
Goodwil BB 16 168,968 - - -
Subsidiaries HEADF 17 - - 86,488 86,454
Deferred tax assets EEHBEEE 25 174 192 - -
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 252,396 17,502 86,488 86,454
Currentassets  hBEE
Contracting work-in-progress EERTR 18 181,135 4,307 - -
Receivables e R X 19 239,972 135,411 = =
Deposits and prepayments "e RERFE 16,018 12,074 153 153
Amounts due from subsidiaries = NGE R 17 - = 305,509 60,167
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries A EES NG 20 698 922 - -
Taxation recoverable A ERIE 27 107 - 17
Cash and cash equivalents RekReE 21 90,718 57,812 103 62
Total current assets RBEELE 528,568 210,633 305,765 60,399
Current liabilites ~ n#ea@ | I 1
Payables and accruals R KETER 22 350,228 94,165 4,915 2,818
Bank loan FITER 26 180,000 - 180,000 -
Amount due to ultimate holding e SRR A R F0E
company 20 25,358 2,779 - -
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZHBRRRE 20 967 456 - -
Taxation payable ERHE 5,285 2,120 - -
Total current liabilities RBEEEE 561,838 99,520 184,915 2,818
Net current (liabilities)/assets %8 (2f%) /&&%& (@320 111413 120850 ¢ 57,581
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBDAE 219,126 128,615 207,338 144,035
Non-current liabilities FrRBER
Long service payment liabilities RERBeEE 2,081 1,803 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 25 12,214 1,232 = =
Total non-current liabilities FrRBEELR 14,295 3,035 - -
Net assets EEFE 204,831 125,580 207,338 144,035
Equity attributable to equity holders of &2 AIRERFHE AEEH#ER
the Company
Share capital A 23 39,067 33,200 39,067 33,200
Retained profits and other reserves RBEF R EMRHEE 24 155,238 81,503 157,971 100,211
Proposed dividends BRI E 10,300 10,624 10,300 10,624
204,605 125,327 207,338 144,035
Non-controlling interests FERER 226 253 - -
Total equity EREH 204,831 125,580 207,338 144,035

Wilfred Wong Ying Wai T % (&

Chairman = &

FEEBEEBRAR

Fan Cheuk Hung % =1 7

Director &%



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERERDE

For the year ended 37 December 2012

BHEr—F——F+-_A=Z+—HIFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERAAAREREEA
Employee
share
option Non-
Share Share Merger Other reserve  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve &E reserve profits Total interests Equity
RE  ROBE AEE HtHE BRERE EIfE RN @i FERER ERLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT  BETn ATz B%Tr BTz BBTn AT B%Tn  BETx
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—-f—-A 33,200 25,913 1,513 - 1,474 533 61,051 123,684 265 123,949
Profit/loss) for the year Emiil/ (BR) = = = = = = 16,001 16,001 (4) 15977
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKA - - - - - 367 - 367 12 379
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  2ERA/ (BiE) 2% - - - - - 367 (600) 16,368 (12) 16,356
2010 final dividend paid BER-Z-ZFE
(note 13) REAR S (HzE13) - - - - = = (11,620) (11,620) = (11,620)
2011 interim dividend paid BR=Z——%F
(note 13) FEAR S (H3E13) - - - - - - (3,984) (3,984) - (3,984)
Share option scheme BRETE - - - - 879 - - 879 - 879
Transfer upon share options lapsed [ 8 A5 5% 2 1 82 - - - - (319) - 313 - - -
At 31 December 2011 RZT——%
+-A=f+—H 33,200 25913 1,513 = 2,040 900 61,761 125,327 253 125,580
Profit/(loss) for the year FRER/ (B8) - - - - - - 18,689 18,689 (27) 18,662
Other comprehensive income Htt2EKA - - - - - 52 - 52 - 52
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2B WA/ (Ei8) &% - - - - - 52 18,689 18,741 @7 18,714
2011 final dividend paid ER=Z—FF
(note 13) RS (H3E13) - - - - - - (10,624)  (10,624) = (10,624)
2012 interim dividend paid BR-E-——%F
(note 13) AR S (FitaE13) - - - - - - (6,640) (6,640) - (6,640)
Issue of shares (note 23) BT (BI7E23) 5,867 51,282 - - - - - 57,149 - 57,149
Bonus convertible AR|TEREER
preference shares (Note) (BsE) - - - 20,339 - - - 20,339 - 20,339
Share option scheme L CHE] - - - - 313 - - 313 = 313
Transfer upon share options lapsed [ & B 5% 2 1 82 3 - - - - (279) - 279 = = =
At 31 December 2012 R-B-ZF
+=A=+-H 39,067 77,195 1,513 20,339 2,074 952 63,465 204,605 226 204,831
Note: This is related to bonus convertible preference shares which is  FisE: ZIEB HARERBRELREH STHRENE

subjected to the 2012 result of the newly acquired ISP.

NEMHEFHREB ZBH-F

— FEEME
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nVT =] EE,ﬁl)ll. E %‘54

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-—T——F+-A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
{h=2 BETT BT IT
Operating activities LEE
Cash generated from operations KEXBEE RS 29 60,880 4,404
Income taxes paid B ATSH (7,442) (4,768)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEISEE S
operating activities (R ZHEF8 53,438 (364)
Investing activities wEER
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BE KB
equipment (4,338) (4,851)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WERZE
plant and equipment FriS 5038 105 172
Interest received SRS 109 108
Interest paid BEAIF B (573) =
Net cash paid for acquisition of Ui B 2 1A S £ S S BR TR B
ISP business EC TNl R bk ) 30 (178,633) =
Time deposits over three months BiE={E 8 EHEFER (638) =
Net cash used in investing activities REEBERBZEFA (183,968) (4,571)
Financing activities BME XD
Drawdown of bank loan BRRITER 180,000 =
Dividend paid BT E (17,264) (15,604)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEKEES (FA)
financing activities 2 & FE 162,736 (15,604)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReEMREEELE M
equivalents ORD) 2 558 32,206 (20,539)
Cash and cash equivalents FzRekBeEE
at the beginning of the year 57,812 78,055
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents IR & &M IR & 5 (E 2 [E 5 W& 62 296
Cash and cash equivalents FRzEeARESEE
at the end of the year 90,080 57,812
Analysis of balances of cash and cash RehBeEEER L
equivalents: DA
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted RITEBR MRS —FER 90,718 57,812
Less: Time deposit over three months B BB =8 A EBER (638) =
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRzEeRRESEE
end of the year 90,080 57,812




Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Synergis Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as
an exempted company on 4 August 2003. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company’s shares were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 9 October 2003.

The principal business of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) is the provision of property and facility
management services in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland.

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, and were
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March
2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties which are carried at fair value.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have given consideration to the future liquidity of the
Group in light of the fact that its current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$33 million as at 31 December 2012.
Taking into account of the available banking facilities and
internal generated funds, the Directors are confident that
the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations when
they fall due within the next 12 months. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 REEERSTBER @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The following new/revised HKFRSs, amendments T REAREEEERR G EEFT2
and interpretations are mandatory for the first time for BEMBWEER BT REE UHEER
the financial year beginning 1 January 2012. There is —E——F—-A - BRBZVBFEEHREK
however no significant impact on the Group’s results o SN AR EZEE R IR EE R
and financial position nor any substantial changes in the FE AEESHBRTEETMEANZE-

Group’s accounting policies.

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of ARG LR IRFERIE : Yg[E]
(Amendment) Underlying Asset F125% (BETA) HEEE
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — EBYHBRELEN SBMTHEH:HFE—
(Amendment) Transfers of Financial Assets EVGACCHEY) BRI EE
HKAS 1 As part of the Annual Improvements B ER ERN-ZE—_FMR
to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle F155 H—TETZNEFERE
issued in 2012 —E——FH—R
BB TSRS 2R

FEBEN—B D

Effective for ET5IAH
accounting periods FHEZRR
beginning on Z&it
or after HEEN
HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other 1 July 2012 BB g ES| 2iEM2E “%--F
(Amendment)  Comprehensive Income F1% (BT4)  WABER tA-H
HKFRSs Annual Improvements to 1 January 2013 BEMBRERY —RENFE-R—— CZE-ZF
(Amendment)  HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 (B3T%) EH-BBRNY -A—-AR
Cycle, except for the EERFEYE
amendments HKAST BB ERER
(BT BN
HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial 1 January 2013 BEMBREEN GANERE £RZ Z5-=f
HKFRS 11 and  Statements, Joint F105% BAYN  HRBEREMEE -A—H
HKFRS 12 Arrangements and BREEAEN MR BEES
(Amendment)  Disclosure of Interests in FREBHE
Other Entities: Transition AR5,
Guidance CHEY
HKAS 19 (2011)  Employee Benefits 1 January 2013 BEg eS| EERA 5-=f
F195 -fA—-H
(Z2——%)
HKAS 27 (2011)  Separate Financial 1 January 2013 BEEER BB RE 3=
Statements L7 —A-H
(Z2——%)
HKAS 28 (2011)  Investments in Associates 1 January 2013 BbgEd HBENRRAESE  ZT-=F
and Joint Ventures F8 5 MixE -A—H
(Z%—%)



2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKFRS 7
(Amendment)

Consolidated Financial
Statements
Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments:
Disclosure — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HK(FRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the

HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27
(Amendment)

HKAS 32
(Amendment)

HKFRS 7
(Amendment)

HKFRS 9

Production Phase of a
Surface Mine
Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Mandatory
Effective date of HKFRS 9
and Transitional Disclosure

Financial Instruments

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2013

1 January 2014

1 January 2014

1 January 2015

1 January 2015

The Group will adopt the above new or revised
standards and amendments to existing standards as
and when they become effective. The Group has already
commenced the assessment of the impact to the
Group, except for HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” which management assessed having no
impact to subsidiary classification, but is not yet in a
position to state whether these would have a significant
impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The

Group’s consolidated financial statements

incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases. Inter-company
transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment (note 2.8). Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to consolidated income
statement.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

2.2 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s and the Group’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gain and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

The results and financial position of all Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income

and as a separate component of equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 mEEERSTEE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 2.3 INEELE N (&)

(Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

2.4 GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

#E
2012

=
&

2.5

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names
are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and trade
names acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a definite
useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 15
years.

Backlog orders acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The secured contracts
have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of the contracts of 3 years.

Non-competition agreement acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The non-competition
agreement has a finite useful life and carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the contracts of 15 years.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the companies in the Group. Investment property
comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is revaluated bi-annually based on active
market prices, adjusted for any necessary difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
the light of current market conditions. Changes in fair
values are recognised in the income statement.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in each asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that there is future
economic benefit to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles
Furniture and equipment

Over the lease period
25% — 30% per annum
10% — 50% per annum

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note
2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the income statement.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENT IN
SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’'s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred
plus an appropriate proportion of profit after deducting
progress payments and allowances for foreseeable
losses. Cost comprises direct materials, labour and
overheads attributable in bringing the work-in-progress
to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount
due from customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention
are included within trade and retention receivables. The
Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except that for maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

2.11

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment testing
of receivables is described in note 2.11.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. When
a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowances account for receivables against the allowance
accounts for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited in the income
statement.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligations, and such amount
can be reasonably estimated. Where the Group expects
a provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset.

2.13 BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

2.15 PAYABLES

Payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. They are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or else,
they are presented as non-current liabilities. Payables
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus are made
for the estimated liability for incentive bonus as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date, where there is a contractual
obligation or past practice that has created a
constructive obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

The Company participates in mandatory provident
fund schemes in Hong Kong which are defined
contribution plan generally funded through
payments to trustee — administered funds. The
assets of the schemes is held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
government in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the subsidiaries in PRC participates in
the municipal government contribution scheme
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible
employees. The municipal government of the PRC
is responsible for the entire benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme
is to pay the ongoing contributions required by the
scheme. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service accounts payable on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine
the present value and reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group’s retirement plans. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method by a qualified actuary. Actuarial
gains or losses are recognised immediately in the
current financial period. For the year ended 31
December 2012, long service payment liabilities
of HK$278,000 were charged to the consolidated
income statement while HK$1,233,000 were
charged to the consolidated income statement in
2011.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the income
statement for the year of the review. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RAEEERSTTEE @

2ATHARBEE

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future events not wholly within the Group’s
control. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because outflow of
economic resources is considered not probable or the
amount cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability in that outflow becomes
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.18 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Group’s entities operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates tax related situations
and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(Continued)

Deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 OPERATING LEASES

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.20 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of returns and discounts and after

eliminating sales within the Group.

Property and facility management fees are recognised
when the services are rendered and in accordance
with the terms of agreements. There are two types
of agreement, namely management remuneration
contracts (“MR Contracts”) and lump sum contracts
(‘LS Contracts”). Under a MR Contract, the Group is
remunerated based on a fixed percentage of the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility,
and only such fee is recognised as the Group’s revenue.
Under a LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum fee
which normally covers the costs involved, thus the whole
of lump sum fee is recognised as the Group’s revenue.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

2.21

Revenue from provision of other supporting services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on
the stage of completion of the contracts, provided that
the stage of contract completion and the gross billing
value of contracting work can be measured reliably.
The stage of completion of a contract is established by
reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to
date as compared to the total contract sum receivable
under the contracts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and title has passed.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding
and the effective interest rates applicable.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability when approved, whereas
dividend proposed but not yet approved is recognised as
an appropriation of retained earnings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

Risk

management seeks to minimise any potential

material effects on the Group’s financial performance
from the following factors:

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s operation in the Chinese
Mainland is exposed to exchange risk arising
from Renminbi. Hedging has not been
effected due to immateriality of the working
capital balances.

(i) Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2012, if interest rates on
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2011: Nil)
higher or lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year would have decreased/increased by
approximately HK$76,000 (2011: Nil) as a
result of higher or lower interest expenses on
floating rate bank borrowings respectively.

The Group’s credit risk primarily arises from credit
exposures to receivables. Current policies ensure
that sales and services are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history and subject
to periodic credit evaluations. Collection of
outstanding receivables is closely monitored on an
ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s two
largest customers accounted for approximately
28.0% of the Group’s total accounts receivable
(2011: approximately 32.3%). These customers
have a good credit history and the Group does
not consider there to be any significant credit
risk in this regard. Certain customers have
exceeded their respective credit terms during
the reporting period (note below on receviables).
However, management does not expect any
significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties because of their good repayment
history.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXKERER@m

(Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk
management which includes maintaining
sufficient bank balances and cash, and having
available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating
segments of the Group and aggregated by
corporate finance team. Corporate finance
team monitors forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liability into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including
interest payment. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the Directors do not consider
that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment, and believe that the
bank loan will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in note 26.
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Financial risk factors B E R E R
Liquidity risk (in HK$’000) mEBEERR B%TT)
The Group The Company
rEE KAF
Between Between Between Between
Less than 1and 2and Less than 1and 2 and
1 year 2 year 5 year Total 1 year 2 year 5 year Total
RZB-ZF -F k3 -F mE
At 31 December 2012 +=A=+—H SR—F EWME ERE @t SR-% EWmE ERE it
Bank loan RITER 30,768 29,866 136,963 197,597 30,768 29,866 136,963 197,597
Payables and accruals ~ JETERHARIEFTBF 850,228 - - 350,228 4915 - - 4915
Amount due to ultimate B SIRIER A A
holding company HIE 25,358 - - 25,358 = = = -
Amount due to felow  [ER R ZKIBA A
subsidiaries HE 967 - - 967 - - - -
Total @i 407,321 29,866 136,963 574,150 35,683 29,866 136,963 202,512
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEBREEm
(Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 BB EEREZE (&)
Financial risk factors (Continued) HMEEKREE (&)
Liquidity risk (in HK$’000) (Continued) nmEBELRAR (B%Tr) (&)
The Group The Company
KEE N
Between Between Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Less than 1 and 2and
1 year 2 year 5 year Total 1 year 2 year 5 year Total
RZF——F - ME - k3
At 31 December 2011 +=A=+—H PR—%F EME ZnE @i SR—F ERE ZRE b
Payables and acoruals ~ JERTERFARIESTER 94,165 - - 94,165 2818 - - 2,818
Amount due to ulimate & H%W“Hﬁ’/} Al
holding company SE 2,779 - - 2,779 - - - -
Amount due to fellow ~ ERfARMB R A
subsidiaries T 456 = = 456 = = = =
Total it 97,400 - - 97,400 2,818 - - 2,818
3.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.2 EXREKERE

3.3

In managing its capital, the Group’s objectives are to
safeguard its ability to continue operation as a going
concern while keeping an optimal capital level to reduce
the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current assets
approximate their fair values due to their short term
maturities.

3.3
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates may not, by definition, equal the related actual
results. Those estimates and assumptions that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of each of the assets and liabilities are discussed
below.

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Such estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of similar nature and functions.

Management determines the provision for impairment of
receivables based on assessment of the recoverability of
the receivables. The assessment is based on the credit
history of its customers and debtors and the current
market condition, which requires the use of judgments
and estimates. Management reassesses the provision at
each balance sheet date.

As explained in note 2.20, revenue recognition on a
project is dependent on management’s estimation
of the total outcome of the construction contract, as
well as the work done to date. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract
costs variation orders and contract claims prepared for
each construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared
by the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major contractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the
management. In order to keep the budget accurate and
up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews
of the management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in estimating the total
contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and
contract claims which may have an impact in terms of
percentage of completion and job profit taken.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 SEEH
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting BRRETAEBZEBARA (BEARRESE
provided to the chief operating decision-maker, identified REEEBEAE BHEABERARER ASE%ES
as the Board of directors and senior management, who are FA AR IR AR MR ) 2 N BRI 3R 25 + 7
responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance of SEER EEDFBRE:

the operating segments and making strategic decisions, the
reportable operating segments are:

. Property and facility management services in Hong o BB R F M EER
Kong;
. Property and facility management services in Chinese . PERM 2 MEREEEERDE  BEHEE
Mainland including leasing services; AR 7% ;
e ISP o ERRMEFHKIER
o Repair and maintenance and . HIERERER
. Supporting services including security, cleaning, laundry, . SERE BERET BR EXKF-
etc.
During the year, the Group has changed the composition of its FRN AEERESHRE2HE ERAFALE
reportable segments to five operating segments (2011: three). AEBBE(ZE——F =@ At - BHE=ZT
Accordingly, the corresponding items of segment information ——F+ A=+ BUEENHER ZEEE
for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been restated. BEELET-

Property and facility
management services

MERRIEEE RS
Interiors &
Chinese Special  Repairand  Supporting
Hong Kong Mainland Projects” Maintenance services  Corporate* Total
EREH
Rk
BB HER HEY BEBRRE XER% B st
2012 —2-=f
Revenue g 627,837 28,497 98,405 92,187 61,534 - 908,460
Gross profit EF 81,707 16,012 9,670 13,948 12,373 - 133,710
Operating profit L RF 35,303 (18,080) 8,479 3,990 3,174 - 32,866
Amortisation of B EE#S
intangible assets - - (727) - - - (727)
Loan interest expenses EHFISH% - - (579) - - - (573)
Professional fee KENEXEH
for acquisition - - (5,065) - - - (5,065)
General and —RRITEEX
administrative
expenses - - - - - (507) (507)
Profit/(loss) before BRBATEF (8518)
taxation 35,303 (18,080) 2,114 3,990 3,174 (507) 25,994
Taxation BiE (7,332)
Profit for the year FEREF 18,662
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MBHREME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2¥EH @
Property and facility
management services
MERZEEERRS
Interiors &
Chinese Special Repairand  Supporting
Hong Kong Mainland Projects* Maintenance services Corporate* Total
EREH
R
Bit FEI A HE' KERRE SRR T st
2011 2%
Revenue Wezs 568,694 22,602 - 46,167 41,347 - 678,810
Gross profit ER 75,645 11,849 - 9,608 8,806 - 105,908
Operating profit BRI 30,724 (18,251) - 2,147 5,701 - 20,321
Other corporate income  EAATEIRA - - - - - 565 565
Profit/(loss) before taxation B &t A&7,/ (&) 30,724 (18,251) - 2,147 5,701 565 20,886
Taxation B (4,909)
Profit for the year FREF 15,977
* Corporate represents corporate level administrative * TBUARRITBUEE
activities.
# ISP division was acquired from the Group’s largest & EAEMRSRIBE RSB IRZE—=

shareholder on 30 November 2012 and hence
2012 financials represented only one month of its

performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue
of approximately HK$228,216,000 (2011:
HK$225,105,000) was derived from two external
customers, which was attributable to the property and

facility management services.

Ft—A=+tHAAEERARREE
FTfs it — T FUMBEAEGE

—fEARZRA -

BE_ZE——H+-_A=+—BILEE &
B 1228,216,000 L2 Wz (=T ——F 8
#225,105,000 7T ) =R BB INREF » it
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6 INTEREST EXPENSES

The entire amount was attributable to the bank loan (2011: Nil).

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

6 FEBRX

7 BRFADRA

E2HECHERBRBRTER(ZE—F:8) -

2012 2011
—E-CfF —T——F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging: K& & AiT3a 1) 2 0B T 71 & 18:
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BIXRAN (BEESEHS)

(note 8) (Bf7E8) 557,572 491,222
Depreciation e 6,952 6,946
Professional fee for acquisition WEHNEXEER 5,065 -
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH 727 =
Auditor’s remuneration =AM & 1,142 1,111
Operating lease rental on land, TH BFERPBAEREZ

buildings and office equipment KEHERS 5,355 4,339

8 STAFF COSTS, INCLUDING 8 BEINA (BREEM®)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2012 2011
—E——& —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Wages and salaries ITERF®

— included in cost of sales —sFABHER A 477,637 420,797

— included in general and administrative —FTA—MRITHRAR
expenses 56,604 48,832
Retirement benefit RIRTER 23,019 20,714
Share option expenses (note 10) FERRME S ) (FFEE10) 312 879
557,572 491,222

el

FEBEEBEARA
20124 ¥R
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M EmRME

9 EMOLUMENTS FORDIRECTORS’AND 9 EERESHFATEHME
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
Salaries, Pension
allowances - defined
and benefit contribution Share
in kind Discretionary scheme option
Fees ¥& 2R bonus BiRe- scheme Total Total
Name of Directors E=ng Be REWRZ MERL RERRGE BRESE @t @5t
Executive Directors YTES
Wilfred Wong Ying Wai THE 150 3,470 945 14 55 4,634 3,860
Fan Cheuk Hung B i 150 2,400 709 240 192 3,691 3,056
Catherine Chu =R 150 840 236 42 25 1,293 1,108
Non-executive Directors F#TEZS
Tenniel Chu KRB 220 - - - 4 224 213
Barry John Buttifant 2K 220 - - - 4 224 213
David Chu Shu Ho * PNEW - - - - - - 26
Kenneth Chu Ting Kin * R 110 - - - 4 14 174
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive Directors
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan 0] 220 - - - 4 224 213
Kan Fook Yee L 220 - - - 4 224 213
Wong Tsan Kwong HEN 220 - - - 5 225 214
David Yu Hon To BEE 220 - - - 5 225 214
1,880 6,710 1,890 296 302 11,078 9,504
Note: B 5 -
No allotment of shares was made during the year under the FRMEREBEREFERZERND (=
share option scheme (2011: Nil). No director waived any —— ) o N B E A N E W BT A]
emoluments and no emoluments were paid to any directors e miAERTEHEESY A ERE
as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for AR AN = B H B S e B BRI -
loss of office during the year.
* Ceased to be non-executive director * FEAEHTES

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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9 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS’ AND

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group include three directors
(2011: two) whose emoluments are included in note 9(a).
The emoluments payable to the other two (2011: three)
highest paid individuals during the year are as follows:

9 EEREESFALIME @

FAAEERRUKSHFALERE=%(=F
——F MBEF FEZHMEEHNLEX
BiFE9(e) - F A BN FTRMME (ZF——
FZR)RRFALZHMESHBOT:

2012 2011
—E—CfF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ST

Salaries, allowances and benefits e RUAREYMH =
in kind 2,362 3,441
Discretionary bonus BB IEAT 285 281
Pension — defined contribution scheme ERA& — 5 E 7K ET 2] 171 168
Share options expense BRES N 50 83
2,868 3,973

The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the
following band:

ERALTOBMEN FATHE :

Number of individuals

A
2012 2011
=F-=% —F——%
Emolument band & &5 [E
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 #1,000,001 T &
7 #:1,500,0007T 2 3
2 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

FR-AEESEMACRSHALTIE
AT & - 1B R fR (8 INA SR D0 A 7R £5 [ B 1
T RERBERE(E -
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10 SHARE OPTION SCHEME 10 RS E
Under the Company’s share option scheme on 19 September BEARARZZEZ=FNATNLBRN—IBE
2003 (the “Option Scheme”), the directors may at their IRiETE ([BRERTE]) - ESHREMIEEN
absolute discretion grant options to eligible persons who are MEERALT  BEAAGNEMMEA G2 EAE
employee or directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. BREBESRHERE-
Movements in the share options under the Option Scheme BEMFEA REBEREFES TEREZZSHN
during the last 2 years are as follows: TS ¢
Average Number of

exercise price share options

FIITEME AREHE

(HKS per share) ‘000

(RGBT (FB&)

As at 1 January 2011 R=—ZT—F—H—H 0.82 12,650

Granted BEEE 0.83 5,550

Lapsed B R 0.83 (2,100)

As at 31 December 2011 and R—_ZE——F+_A=+—8Bk

1 January 2012 —T——%#—H—H 0.83 16,100

Lapsed B R 0.85 (2,850)

As at 31 December 2012 R—_ZE——F+-_A=+—H 0.82 13,250
Out of 13,250,000 outstanding options (2011: 16,100,000), #13,250,00007 M ARATE B B AR AE (— T —— 45
3,090,000 options (2011: 4,820,000) were exercisable with the 16,100,00017 ) #F + H #13,090,00017 BE R 1 (==
average exercise price of HK$0.82 (2011: HK$0.82). ——%:4,820,00010 ) R AI{TEHY - FHITEER

H0.827T (ZF ——4F : B 10.827T) °

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and MARITEBAE 2 B A RATEEWDT
exercise price:

Average Number of
Expiry date Z|HH exercise price share options ('000)
T TEE REERE (TR)
(HKS$ per
share) 2012 2011
(FREETT) —EB-C=F —E——%F
24 September 2013 —E—=FhAA=+mWEH 0.82 1,650 1,800
31 August 2015 —E—RFENA=+—H 0.76 1,500 1,500
24 September 2015 —E—RFhA=-+mWmAH 0.83 8,450 9,050
6 June 2017 —E—tFANH 0.86 1,650 3,750

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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11 TAXATION 11 1B
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of MERNBENEH DIREBEFE 2 G5t R
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the year after AR EFRAUZHEBREREE D Z 2
application of available tax losses brought forward for both T E - ANEBE 2 BINE N HIB IR AT E(ETE
years. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on A AR LS B R ZBITHEAE -

the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated FHREBEmRNER (5P ZBIEWT :
income statement represents:

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BEET T BT T
Current taxation EHANIE
Hong Kong profits tax BB NEH
— provision for the year —FREE 7,196 5,606
— over provision in prior years —BAEFEBERE (295) (327)
Overseas tax ABINIR
— provision for the year —FREE 511 =
— over provision in prior years —BEFEBERE - (7)
Deferred taxation (note 25) RIER A (P EE25) (80) (363)
7,332 4,909
The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from REBRTANRN 2 FHIBEEANRRAEBRR 2
the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate MEEEEZERNAIEZBOT
of the home country of the Company as follows:
2012 2011
—E-_F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ook e
Profit before taxation R 75 A1 5 A 25,994 20,886
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B ER16.5%:1 &
(2011:16.5%) (ZE——%F:16.5%) 4,289 3,446
Effect of different taxation rates in other HEMBEROMERERTE
countries (885) (818)
Over provision in prior years BEFEBRBERE (295) (334)
Income not subject to taxation BERTHA (183) 671)
Expenses not deductible for IR E
taxation purposes 1,069 160
Unrecognised tax losses RE-R 2 HREEE 3,337 2,516
7,332 4,909
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12 AABIREFE ABGEGER
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Before consolidating with its subsidiaries, the Company profit HEBAREGEARA  ARAFERANRBBE
for the year was HK$23,384,000 (2011: HK$14,917,000). 23,384,0007T ( =Z——4F : B %14,917,0007T ) °
DIVIDENDS 13 ZEERRE
2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT IT
(a) Dividends attributable to @ AFEEELRKRE:
the current year:
Interim dividend paid of 2.0 HK cents B 1 R B AR B 2,011
(2011: 1.2 HK cents) —E——& e 20l) 6,640 3,984
Final dividend proposed of 2.5 HK cents EEARHREABB2.50
(2011: 3.2 HK cents) —T——F:BE%3.20) 10,300 10,624
16,940 14,608
(o)  Dividends attributable to the previous (o) B E— A BEE -
year, approved and paid during BREASZMZEKE:
the year:
Final dividend of 3.2 HK cents RNERAR 28 #3211
(2011: 3.5 HK cents) —E—— & BEa.5l) 10,624 11,620

At a meeting held on 22 March 2013, the Company’s board
of directors resolved to recommend a final dividend of 2.5 HK
cents for the year ended 31 December 2012. This proposed
final dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
financial statements, until it has been approved by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

R_T—=F=-A-_+-HA&7zgmL A2 F
ExepiEERE _T——4+-_A=+—H
IFFEE 2 R B B HE2.5 - ZIEZZ K
BEX RN AAEHRERPREBEMEE  EEE
HERSEABBREREEARATBEREAS H
PR A L -

Synergis Holdings Limited
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14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SRER
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s BREARBN DIRBERERE ARG AREE R
profit attributable to the equity holders by the weighted average BrAF A BT INEFHHTE -
number of shares in issue during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s EREBERFIZAQARERSE ABEAEER
profit attributable to the equity holders by the weighted average MBR LA A BEF N RITEE B RARE R B 1T
number of shares outstanding after adjustment for the potential BERND 2 BEBR B EBELRARRIBEETE
dilutive effect in respect of outstanding employee share options AR NEFIHETE -
and potential shares issued during the year.
2012 2011
—E——F —E——4F
Profit attributable to equity holders (HK$'000) PR B AEHEH B FT) 18,689 16,001
Weighted-average ordinary shares issued (000) B %77 A% hnfE F1o 8k (FA%) 332,000 332,000
Adjustments for potential ordinary BFETEELBRAZE (TR)
shares to be issued ('000) 1,311 -
Weighted-average shares for calculating FRRESE R T 2 B () hn e T 15 &
diluted earnings per share (000) (FAx) 333,311 332,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREARZF (FEEEAW) 5.6 4.8
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) BRREERT OB%L) 5.6 4.8
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MR R

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ¥ BERRERREYE
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Furniture
Leasehold Motor and Investment
improvements vehicles  equipment Total properties
HENEEL RE  BERRE st REMR
(Note)
(B aE)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ABTL ABTL  BETR ABTIL BRI

At 1 January 2011 RZB-—-%-F—-H
Cost/valuation KA/ 4,263 2,170 40,245 46,678 2,000
Accumulated depreciation RiHE (2,075) (1,210) (26,606) (29,891) -
Net book value/valuation BEFE/ fE 2,183 960 13,639 16,787 2,000
Year ended 31 December 2011 B2-E-——-%+t-A=1-H
LEE
Opening net book valug/valuation FOREFE/BE 2,188 960 13,639 16,787 2,000
Exchange differences EAZER 11 - 62 73 -
Additions AE 247 1,044 3,560 4,851 -
Revaluation Efh - - - - 680
Disposals HE (93) (40) @ (135) -
Depreciation e (1,033) (594) (5,319) (6,946) -
Closing net book value/valuation FRIEEFE/fBE 1,320 1,370 11,940 14,630 2,680
At31December2011 R -®--&+=g=t-R
Cost/valuation B/ {58 4,451 3,111 43,691 51,253 2,680
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE (3,131) (1,741) (31,751) (36,623) =
Net book value/valuation REFE/fE 1,320 1,370 11,940 14,630 2,680
Year ended 31 December 2012 R-Z-—%+-A=+-H
Opening net book valug/valuation FNREFE/BE 1,320 1,370 11,940 14,630 2,680
Exchange differences EAZER 7 g 7 17 -
Additions AE 283 1,008 3,047 4,338 -
Acauisition of ISP business (Note 30)  WEZEAEH R EHKIER £5
(Ft7+30) 683 137 972 1,792 -

Revaluation Bff - - - - 410
Disposals HeE () ® (1) (87) -
Depreciation e (625) (714) (5,613) (6,952) -
Closing net book value/valuation FRIEEFE/fBE 1,660 1,796 10,282 13,738 3,090
At31 December202 R -®-—&+=p=t-
Cost/valuation RA /iR 6,411 4,281 47,993 58,685 3,090
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE (4,751) (2,485) (37,711) (44,947) -
Net book value/valuation BEFE/fHE 1,660 1,796 10,282 13,738 3,090
Note:  The investment properties were revalued as of year-end MizE: REVERFRBBELEEMEGERMFES

date on the basis of their open market value by an BIFHEIIT AR A RIE AR MEEESE G

independent professional property valuer, Knight Frank Hr o

Petty Limited.

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 B EE
Non-
Backlog  competition
Goodwill || Trademarks orders  agreement Total
HE BHE AZHIE THRINE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2012 R=B--%5-A-H - - - - -
Acquisition of ISP business (Note 30)  WEBZEREH L EHREE £5
(B 5¥30) 168,968 48,826 15,934 2,393 67,153
At 31 December 2012 RZEB--%+-A=1-H 168,968 48,826 15,934 2,393 67,153
Accumulated amortisation EHE
At 1 January 2012 R=B-=f-F-H - - - - -
Amortisation for the year EREH = 271) (443) (13) (727)
At 31 December 2012 R-Z2--f+-A=+-H - (71) (443) (13) (727)
Net book value REREE
At 31 December 2012 RZE--%+-A=1+-H 168,968 48,555 15,491 2,380 66,426

Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of the ISP
business included goodwill, trademarks, backlog orders and
non-competition agreement.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination.
Assessment of any impairment of goodwill is based on the
recoverable amount of the ISP segment derived from cash
flow projections based on approved management budget over
a three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period
are extrapolated with zero growth rate. A discount rate was
adopted to reflect specific risk relating to the segment. The
key assumptions adopted are the discount rates, growth rates
and projected operating profit, which were determined based
on past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

The trademarks refers to the use of the name of “Hsin
Chong” logo in Hong Kong. Other than the value included
in the acquisition consideration, there is no on-going fee for
utilising the Trade Marks. Although there is no expiry date,
management has prudently adopted a 15 year useful life for
amortisation purpose.

el

EmEEEDEEBREEANRMRFRER X
% ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% [ERER *EWET@&TER?%N#(’

BEIEERREXBEHTESH S ZREE
HEEBA - EAEEREDRECIEN=FHZ
FRIRE MR SRR E O E R K SRR
B OB AIKEI S8 - FrE = F R ENERE SRS
BTRRERER  WRAFTRE - URBRS R D
B ERR - -PTANEZRRK  BREHANNT
RE BEERUARKEHENEE ARRRIIRIE
BERRMEEEHMSERNOPEETE -

EIZHEREAFE A [Hsin Chong | BU1Z 5 ° Bt A
Hﬁlﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁfﬁﬁl\'ﬁ MFAREENFEER &
EWEZPE EEEREEEEMREN T RFER
FERAFH
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17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16

Backlog orders refers to the contractual sales that are
outstanding at time of acquisition of ISP, from which there
is a set of expected benefits to be received and accordingly
management has adopted amortisation over 3 years.

Based on the non-competition agreement, management has
adopted amortisation over 15 years.

The above amortisation expenses are included in other
operating expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Notes to the Financial Statements

M EmRME

BELEE @)

ATEKFTERAORKRBEARMRFIKRIAR N
EBERAREENGOHEE LS TRE— K5I

B B R = R -

RETHFHE TRECRABY RS

B ERAS T AR RERNEMREFRX -

SUBSIDIARIES 17 &2 H
Company
AT
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T ST
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMARD K ANE 86,488 86,454
Amounts due from subsidiaries NS NET S 305,509 60,167
391,997 146,621

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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18 CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS 18 HEEAHTE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT IT
Gross amounts due from customers JEREF 2 TIRRIEERE
for contract work 181,135 4,307
Contract costs incurred plus attributable B AR AN hN FE A & F) s °] FE R
profits less foreseeable losses g} 418,639 4,307
Less: progress payments received and B B R EWN TRARRK
receivable (245,586) -
Contracting work-in-progress BER T2 173,053 4,307
Represented by: 255
Gross amounts due from customers for FEREEDTREE NI
contract work included in stocks and EREF 2 T2 RIBERE
contracting work-in-progress 181,135 4,307
Gross amounts due to customers JERERA KT ERAEBE T8
for contract work included EREFzIRERIBER
in payables and accruals (8,082) -
173,053 4,307

%

i
g
By

=

2

BEEAFRA

1
i
el
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19 RECEIVABLES 19 BEUER
As of 31 December 2012, accounts receivable of R=_FE——F+-—A=+—H BafERREZ
HK$62,379,000 (2011: HK$53,220,000) were past due but not FEURBR X A8 562,379,000 T ( =T ——4F : B
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers 53,220,000 JT.) ° bt )45 K 2 8] S 3T A7 48 16 /R 40 8% Y
for whom there is no recent history of default. The credit period BURF AEEEBWERZEEH BN T=1
of the Group’s accounts receivable generally ranges from 30 EXTH(ZZE——F: =+F"1H) - k@A
to 60 days (2011: 30 to 60 days). The ageing analysis by due o ERERF Z RO -
date is as follows:
2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T PR T IT
Accounts receivable FEWBR R
Not yet due 1) A< 180 5 107,551 64,004
1 to 30 days 1 £30 H 45,466 37,904
31 to 60 days 31 £60 H 8,378 7,905
61 to 90 days 61 290 H 1,909 3,624
Over 90 days 90 HIA E 6,626 3,787
169,930 117,224
Retention receivables and other FEW R B & & H i FE IR IE
receivables 70,042 18,187
239,972 135,411
The majority of the Group’s accounts receivable are AEBZEKESEARTHUBEREMN R
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. There were no accounts ——F+-_A=t+—H8 TEEKRIFRE(=Z
receivables impaired as of 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). The —F ) RAREBRANEERR A LS
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the FEUBR SR 2 BRE B - AN B IS B (A E R R e
carrying value of the accounts receivable mentioned above. o

The company does not hold any collateral as security.

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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20 BALANCES WITH FELLOW

21

i)

Sy

isiy
=

SUBSIDIARIES AND ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY

Balances with fellow subsidiaries and ultimate holding
company are unsecured, interest free, repayable on demand
and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

20 ARAMBARRERERDAER

RAMEARREEZERARGHRTEER 2
BAREREERABE BB -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 REeERFALEE
Group Company
rEE ¥ N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-ZF —T——F —B-CZF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T BT
Cash at bank and in hand BOEREERE 90,080 57,812 103 62
Time deposit over three months BB=AATHER 638 = - =
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE 90,718 57,812 103 62

The majority of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

b

s
bid

EERRTF

=)

AEBEZRERASFERBD ABEREN -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3R R B &
22 PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22 ENRAKRETER
The credit period of the Group’s accounts payable generally REEBENERZEEH BN TF=1TE-TH
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2011: 30 to 60 days). The ageing —E——F:=F+FTH) KAHAHSE
analysis of accounts payable by due date is as follows: R BRFR Z BRER D AT IA T
Group Company
AEE NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f —T——F —E--f —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT BETT BT

Accounts payable FEFBRFR
Not yet due i) 7~ 18 B 207,899 34,802 - =
1 to 30 days 1230H 9,693 3,940 - -
31 to 60 days 31260H 1,950 1,577 - =
61 to 90 days 61%290H 1,040 1,012 - -
Over 90 days 90H A £ 8,083 4,896 - -
228,665 46,227 - -
Retention payables, other E{fRE® HMENRER
payables and accruals EstER 121,563 47,938 4,915 2,818
350,228 94,165 4,915 2,818
23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 B
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ke e
Authorised: JATE
9,000,000,000 ordinary shares SR EEEH0.107TH
(2011: 10,000,000,000) of 9,000,000,0000% & 18 %
HK$0.10 each (=2 ——%:
10,000,000,0000% ) 900,000 1,000,000
1,000,000,000 convertible preference SRR EEBEE0.107TH
shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000,000% 7 2 34 & 5% 1% 100,000 =
1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRHE -
Beginning of the year F1)
332,000,000 ordinary shares of FRREEB¥0.107THY
HK$0.10 each 332,000,000 & 38 A% 33,200 33,200
58,666,667 convertible preference SR AEEEH0.107TH
shares of HK$0.10 each 58,666,667 i% A] B2 1 48 5t I 5,867 -
End of the year FR 39,067 33,200

Synergis Holdings Limited _
Annual Report 2012 1 28
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24 BRAK#iE
Details of movement in the reserves of the Group are set AEBFBELEFIEHNESSE

out on page 85.

Employee
share option
Share Share  Contributed reserve Retained Total
capital premium surplus  EERRE profits equity
B R EE BABH & REEHN EREE
(Note)
(BzE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2011 R=Z--%-H-H 33,200 25913 82,601 1,474 968 144,156
Profit attributable to equity A7 AIRER A A EH
holders of the Company (ME12)
(note 12) - - - - 14,917 14,917
2010 final dividend paid BEE-Z-SEEREKE
(note 13) (M#13) = = = = (11,620) (11,620)
2011 interim dividend paid ~~ ER-ZE——FERHKE
(note 13) (Hi13) - - - - (3,984) (3,984)
Share option scheme RiRE:T 2 - - - 566 - 566
At 31 December 2011 RZE-——%+-F=+-H 33,200 25,913 82,601 2,040 281 144,035
Profit attributable to equity A7 AIRER A A EH
holders of the Company (ME12)
(note 12) - - - - 23384 23,384
2011 final dividend paid BRZE——5ERBRE
(note 13) (M#13) = = = = (10,624) (10,624)
2012 interim dividend paid ~~ BR-ZE——FERHKE
(note 13) (H13) - - - - (6,640) (6,640)
Issue of shares (note 23) BB (FiFE23) 5,867 51,282 - - - 57,149
Share option scheme B2l - - - 34 - 34
At 31 December 2012 R-E--“%+-A=+-H 39,067 77,195 82,601 2,074 6,401 207,338
Note: The contributed surplus represents the difference MaE: BMABBIENBARGAREESHEA
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds AR T =FEESARRIIEZ
of the subsidiaries and the nominal value of the LB RARMEIT AR RRGEERM
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition of EHEE - REBEABRE-—NN—F27
these subsidiaries at the time of the Group’s & (FYERT) » ARRIA] BBARBRFIIK
reorganisation in 2003. Under the Companies Act RIEH DK

1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the Company
may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus.

HEEREEARAT
Ak aallan



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3R R B &
25 DEFERRED TAXATION 25 IEIEFRIE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences BB IBERAGEBMEERM 2 MEZEE /Z
under the liability method using tax rates substantively enacted MR ERERYTE RN EAERE FE 2 E
as at the balance sheet date. The movement on the net E)R N
deferred tax liabilities account is as follows:
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T PR T
Beginning of the year F 1] 1,040 1,403
Acquisition of ISP business U hs 2= 4 6 S A5 R 18 B 2575 11,080 -
Deferred taxation recognised in consolidated 72 m/\TE &7k MR 2
income statement (note 11) RIERLIE (FIEE11) (80) (363)
End of the year FR 12,040 1,040
The movement on the deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior REHIHEEERBE (RARBH e EEREHEE
to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) BRAT) NFAN 2 ZEIT
during the year is as follows:
Group
REE
Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets
EEHEEE EEHEEE
Accelerated Accounting
tax Intangible Fair tax
depreciation assets value gains Total  depreciation Total
MEREHE BYEE  DARERES mit etHENE it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ABTL ABTL ABTL ABTL ABTT BB

At 1 January 2011 \:g —&—f—H 1,563 - 34 1,597 194 194
Charged to consolidated income RERBRENR

statement - - 112 112 () )
Credited to consolidated income MEEBREA

statement (@77) - - (477) - -
At 31 December 2011 R=FE——%+-A=1—H 1,086 - 146 1,232 192 192
Acquisition of ISP business uyﬁ%m%&ﬁm B ##% - 11,080 - 11,080 - -
Charged to consolidated income REERBRER

statement 168 - - 168 (18) (18)
Credited to consolidated income REABREA

statement - (120) (146) (266) - -
At 31 December 2012 R=B-Z£+=ZA=1+-H 1,254 10,960 - 12,214 174 174

Synergis Holdings Limited _
Annual Report 2012 1 25



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3R = i &
25 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 25 JEZEBLIE (@)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried BARE R IE B R M R AR EHIEEEERRN
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax BREZHBHZEE LB BRRERT & HE
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group WREE 5 o A& B FHEHS1,184,000T (ZF——
has unrecognised tax losses of HK$31,134,000 (2011: B #521,534,0007T, ) 2 A T TR R I8 &5 18 1] 4 8
HK$21,534,000) to carry forward against future taxable A SRR Z ERTIUA I TRIBEBE BB —F
income. These tax losses are expiring from 2013 through —=FEFT—tEFANER-
2017.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EE TN ERAERBEERIE AR IBEAE
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against Wy MELERIEN LR — B B - B a] i iEE
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the BMEEAEHREEHRBEEEMEEE EF A AEE K
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after 1B TN ESBEESBERABRAYE-
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE (174) (192)
Deferred tax liabilities REHIERE 12,214 1,232
12,040 1,040
26 BANK LOAN 26 HWITER
Group & Company
AEERAAT
2012 2011
—E-CZfF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Portion due for repayment within one year —F N R HBEE ZB 1D 24,000 =
Portion due for repayment after one year, —FIR B EEE M
which contains a clause of MRS G RIR EskER
repayment on demand
() in the second year iy =% 24,000 -
(i) in the third to fifth years, inclusive iy F=FZFRF
(BREERMT) 132,000 =
Total bank loan RITERAT 180,000 =
The bank loan is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RITERTIABEE 2B BBRITRERSINF
carried interest rate of 3.5% over HIBOR (2011: Nil). A floating R35% (Z T ——F . |+ 8 - E T ARA BHT
charge over the assets of the subsidiaries of the Company is BRAREEEZIHHL - FTEXNEREEEN
charged to the bank loan. The carrying amounts of bank loan SEHRE -

approximate their fair value.

FEEBEEBRAR



27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

BATS MR M R

27 KREHEAIE

BRETUHEECEHEARARINNREES

BR@FENT
Land and buildings Office equipment
THRBF WAERE
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--F —E——F —B-—F -2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR  B%To BETR BETR

Within one year —FR

5,548 4,592 216 188
In the second to fifth years inclusive E-FZFRLF (REEEMRF) 6,546 9,873 371 380
12,094 14,465 587 568

28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28 EAREIE

Office equipment

WAERE
2012 2011
—E——F —ZT——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Authorised but not contracted for ERERRETA 1,013 1,340

Synergis Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2012
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Bt 75 4R 52 B =E

29 NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH

#E
2012

@
i

29 REREBRME

FLOWS
Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from e mA RS EBEE 2R SHERER
operations
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT ook e
Profit before taxation R 75 A e A 25,994 20,886
Share option expenses FERR RS 313 879
Depreciation neE 6,952 6,946
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEEEH 727 =
Net finance cost B & R AN RE 462 (108)
Revaluation gain EXEYE (410) (680)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BWE REEz s
plant and equipment (30) @37)
Operating profit before working EEESBEAI L
capital changes i Al 34,008 27,886
Increase in contracting work-in-progress FiEE R TR23E A0 (48,517) (3,898)
Decrease/(increase) in receivables FEUBR ZR A (& n) 36,769 (45,707)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and Ze RIBAZIERD (3G M)
prepayments 30,214 (5,814)
Change in net balances with EESG PGB
fellow subsidiaries 735 133
(Decrease)/increase in payables and JERERF - BT ERARRERES
accruals and long service payment afE (D),
liabilities (4,903) 30,456
Increase in amount due to ultimate JE AT B A 2 AR 2 B SR IE 3 A
holding company 12,587 1,338
Exchange translation ME 5, (13) 10
Cash generated from operations REXEFEEZRE 60,880 4,404

SEERAF



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3R R B &
30 BUSINESS COMBINATION 30 ¥EKEHf
On 30 November 2012, the Group acquired the ISP Business REZT—ZF+—A=+H AEEURELE
at a consideration of approximately HK$257,488,000. The ISP #057,488,0007C N i = N & R BBk IE B 375 o
Business is principally engaged in the provision of demolition EAEMEEHREEEFR T ENRERBFETE
work, addition and alteration works, fitting out and special BANNERMETE  EARMREFREEIER %
construction projects. The purchase method is adopted for this WHESIERMEE X BUE B EEEARE K
acquisition, resulting in goodwill arising from the acquisition of 168,968,0007T °
HK$168,968,000.
Book value Fair value
BREE ARE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
PR T IT PR T IT
Recognised amount of identifiable net EWBABNFEEZ
assets acquired: EREREE
Property, plant and equipment eSS 1,792 1,792
Intangible assets EmEE - 67,153
Contracting work-in-progress PR T2 128,311 128,311
Receivables and prepayments JE W BR 3k K TR~ 3R IE 175,488 175,488
Cash and bank balances RITRIA S R 1,367 1,367
Payables and accruals JER AR R 5t B (264,519) (264,519)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE - (11,080)
Amount due from ultimate holding company & W & 445 A% A &) 51 18 (9,992) (9,992)
Total identifiable net assets acquired BB B & E R E AR 32,447 88,520
Goodwill on acquisition WEEm 2 HE 168,968
Total consideration wRE 257,488
Satisfied by: B A A
Bank loan RITER 180,000
Convertible preference shares A $E IR ST AR 57,149
Contingent consideration — bonus FARE AL AT ERE LR
convertible preference shares 20,339
257,488
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WS EE 2R e FE
Cash paid for acquisition HBBEENTEE (180,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BlEsREMESEE 1,367
Net cash outflow in respect of HWBERK 2B R L FE
the acquisition of business (178,633)

Acquisition related cost of HK$5,065,000 has been charged
to the income statement in the current year. The accounts and
other receivables acquired are considered fully collectible. The
details of the intangible assets arising from this acquisition is
set out in Note 16. In 2012, the acquired business contributed
one-month revenue of HK$98,405,000 and profit before tax of
HK$2,114,000 to the Group.

Uy 8% 4R B8 B AN 7B #55,065,0007T B 7R AN 4F [ Ry U 2
FANBR o B UK BE B U BR 30 K% Lt B UK RROIB AR (B AT 28
HWE - FZFEELREZBEBEMELEZETR
BEZHMFI6  —BE——EEC WEEBITAAN
£ E g —1E A U A B #98,405,0007T K K Fi ATz Al
72 114,0007T ©

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the

key

management personnel compensation was

approximately HK$13,826,000 (2011: HK$11,327,000).

Summary of the significant related party transactions
carried out by the Group is as follows:

31 BEALRS
BEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIEFE F
ZE A B EH B4 A7 %13,826,0007T (=

T——4: B#11,327,0007T) ©

AEBETZERFEALRZHMEMNT

2012 2011
—E-C=fF —T——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 3 BET T BEETIT
Service charges paid to ultimate RTRKER AR R A2
holding company fRis & [0} (18,184) (16,188)
Facility management income KE—RRAFXMBEARZ
from a fellow subsidiary BHEE A (i) 555 543
Rental expenses paid to HeRYXINTF—R
a fellow subsidiary EES =N (iii (1,661) (1,641)
Services income from KB T AR ZRBBKA
— ultimate holding company —RRERAA (iv) 2,208 958
— fellow subsidiaries —RZRHB AR (iv) 3,331 4,276
Consultancy fee income from RE T ARIZEREBRA
— a fellow subsidiary ——RERWB AR ) 216 550
— a related company ——XEERA v) 736 -
Contracting work’s income from FE—RRARMBARZ
a fellow subsidiary AHTEKA (vi) 2,016 -
Contracting work’s cost paid to M—XARBARZNZ
a fellow subsidiary BHTIRRA (vil) (447) -

Notes: P& -

() Service charges paid in respect of administrative () MEELERARRASEREZITHR
services provided by ultimate holding company to the % IR ESEEASE 2 KR KA IE
Group which were reimbursed at cost based on time BRARZ At o
and expenses allocated to the Group.

(i) Facility management income earned for services (i) HEEEBWADIZRESHBER —REZR
rendered to a fellow subsidiary, which was mutually Ff /&8 A R AR 75 o
agreed by both parties.

(i)  Rental expenses paid to a fellow subsidiary, based on iy M—RERMEBARZN BRI
actual usage and market rent. REBERERTHHEEFHE -

(v)  Service fees earned on services including security, vy BATIREZRE (BERT #E KR
repair and maintenance, laundry, cleaning, etc. B AKX KRBRERB)RAFEERE
rendered, which were mutually agreed on an arm’s BEFMREILZ B -
length basis.

(v Consultancy fee income earned for services rendered v) EEBRADNZRESHER—RRERH
to a fellow subsidiary and a related company, as BRAN—KREERRRHEERBRRS -
agreed by both parties.

(vl  Contracting work’s income earned from a fellow vi BRRE-—ZRKRARZMBAGZEHITERK
subsidiary, which was mutually agreed by both A HBEIHNE T EE HE -
parties.

(vi)  Contracting work’s cost paid to a fellow subsidiary, Vi) M—RERMBRARZNZ2EHITEKX
which was mutually agreed by both parties. N-BETHNEFHERE -

A



31

32

33

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31

(Continued)

Each of the related party transactions listed above
constitutes continuing connected transactions under the
definition in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

HOLDING COMPANIES

The directors regard Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd., a
company incorporated in Bermuda, as the ultimate holding
company and Smart Lane Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as the immediate

holding company.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation
and

Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R

32

ERAT

E £ 18 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (7 & &
EEBERAR) (REREFMERIHARE) B
EARPERR /A E] i Smart Lane Holdings Limited ( 7325
BEZESFEMKIMAR) AEEERATR -

BEEATRS (&)

33 FEMBAT

Issued and paid
up/registered

EIRIRRE A TR BB TR RIE14A
BREZFBEMERS -

Effective
percentage of

operation capital interest held
Name SRR L R Principal activities ERITRHZE BB R
z28 KA TEXH AR Bk
Interest held directly:
BERF#ER
Synergis Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Investment holding 100,000 ordinary 100%
Islands ! REZR shares of HK$0.1
REBREZHE each
100,000k & AR E &
0T Z
Tk
Interest held indirectly:
EE Az
Synergis Management Services Hong Kong Provision of property management 206,837 ordinary 100%
Limited BB services and investment holding shares of HK$1
MEEERBERDA R EERRE IR EER each
206,837k F R EE
BT ik
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong Provision of property services 2 ordinary shares of 100%
L AR AR A A BB REMEIRTS HK$1 each
M BREEBBIT
Z BB
SecurExpert Solutions Limited Hong Kong Provision of security and 2 ordinary shares of 100%
MBERZIRBEARA A B8 consultancy services HK$1 each
RERZ K ER RS 2REREEEEIT
R

for idenification purposes only (£ £ 5l

Synergis Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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33 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33 FEHE AT @

Place of
incorporation Issued and paid Effective
and up/registered percentage of
operation capital interest held
Name MR R Principal activities ERITRAR FisERER
£% mEn TEEH R R A "SIl
Optimum Engineering Limited Hong Kong Provision of repair and maintenance 2 ordinary shares of 100%
HEEAIRBERAR B services HK$1 each
REAERRERS 2R E R EEB
17T 2 E R
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of laundry services 2 ordinary shares of 100%
EREREBRA A &8 REKK RS HK$1 each
2REREEEE
17T 2 & @R
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of cleaning services 200,000 ordinary 100%
REZRBAER AT B REEZRE shares of HK$1
each
200,0000%
FREEBE
17T 2 E @R
Synergis Facility Management Hong Kong Provision of facility management 2 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited B services HK$1 each
MEREEEGRAA R R E 2 RS REREEEE
17T 2 BB
S-Club Limited Hong Kong Sales of products, provision of 1 ordinary share of 100%
BB copying services and property HK$1
holding 1R G R EE S
HEEm REEDREESEYE 1tz EBEk
Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Provision of fitting-out, renovation 5,000,000 ordinary 100%
Limited 3 B and addition and alteration works share of HK$1
MEENEM (BB)ERDAP REZNEE BMENERBETRE each
5,000,000/ &R EE
BT E AR
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong Provision of demolition work, 22,000,000 ordinary 100%
(Engineering) Limited 3 BB addition and alteration works and share of HK$1
HEREM (IR)BRARP special construction projects each
REFBIRENZLBETIRL  22,000,0000 55K
k1A B HEBBITZ
Rk



33 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation
and

Notes to the Financial Statements

33

MR R

FEMB QT (@)

Effective
percentage of

Issued and paid
up/registered

operation capital interest held
Name MR Principal activities SRITRAR/ FEERES
£ mE TEEH SER R A RN
Everich Construction (Macau) Macau Provision of renovation and fitting- MOP25,000 100%
Limited 3 SR out works S8 P9 #25,0007T
B ORM) ERARP REBHTRENEH TR
Synergis Property Management PRC (wholly Provision of property management, ~ RMB14,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 2 owned foreign repair and maintenance of AR #14,000,0007T
MEMEEE (FI)BRAR? enterprise) sophisticated equipment and
HE (INEEE indoor cleaning services,
) and property management
consultancy services
REMEER BERETERBR
EREZIRY - AREEIRER
PR
Synergis Property Services (Beijing) PRC (wholly Provision of property and facility RMB24,000,000 100%
Co. Ltd. ? owned foreign management services, property AR #24,000,00070
MEWMERS (LR BRAFR enterprise) agent and property consultancy
HE (SNEBE services
=) REDE KR EE R R

U This is an investment holding company with no specific U

place of operation.

2 These are not registered company names but merely for 2

identification purposes only.

2 These companies are acquired on 30 November 2012. 2

B M0 E AR AT 2 s b S R R AR 7%

Fo

AR/ REER AR LEARLE M

ZELIEEMAR G EH2E-

ZERB DR ——F+—A=TBHKHE-

Synergis Holdings Limited
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Five Year Financial Summary

hEMBRHE

Nine months
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-Zf & —T2-%E “ZTNE —ZT)\E
t=H=+-8 +ZA=+-B t+zZA=t-B +zZA=t-B f=A=1+-H
LEE IHEE IHERE JI=:35 ILAER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BRI BT BT BETT
Operating Results ReExE
Revenue Wz 908,460 678,810 578,180 546,837 350,540
Profit before extra-ordinary items and taxation BB RRER R 25,994 20,386 22,997 32,903 24 474
Share of profits of a jointly controlled entity AEEREHEE 2 8H - - - - 50
Loss on disposal of a jointly controlled entity HE-ZRLRABHER 2B - = = - (363)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate PME—RBEANRZ (BB) /&H - - - 410) 513
Gain on liquidation of an associate BFE-FBENR R - - - 85 -
Profit before taxation B AR 25,994 20,886 22,997 32,578 24,674
Taxation i 7:332) (#.909) (4,683) 6:333) 3709
Proft for the year ERER 18,662 15,077 18,314 26,245 20,965
Non-controlling interests R 27 24 33 993) 187
Profit attributable to eqity holders of B EBRAARRERBA
the Company 18,689 16,001 18,347 26,152 21,152
Assets and Liabilities BEREHE
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment VEN:YE 13,738 14,630 16,787 18,659 11,813
Investment properties REME 3,090 2,680 2,000 2,000 2,000
Intangile assets BYEE 66,426 = = = -
Goolwil HE 168,968 - - - 1,708
Deferred tax assets BRNEAE 174 192 194 144 183
Current assets MEEE 528,568 210,633 175,246 180,021 171,473
Total assets BEAT 780,964 228,135 194,227 200,824 187,172
Liabilities aff
Current liabilties nEaE 561,838 99,520 68,111 71515 68,781
Deferred tax liabilities EXRBEARE 12,214 1,232 1,597 2,234 1,610
Long service payment liabilities REGBLEE 2,081 1,803 570 1,255 945
Total liabilities BREAT 576,133 102,555 70,278 75,004 71,336
Non-controlling interests FERER 226 253 265 424 292
Equity attributable to equity holders of FRARERE AEGER
the Company 204,605 125,327 123,684 125,396 115,544




Major Properties

EFEYx

Properties held for investment at 31 December 2012 RZEBE——F+_A=1T—ARKEREZYHE
Percentage of
Group’s Interest
Description Use Status Lease Term REBAT L
F1E JizkeoS 97 HEFH EREDE
Loading Bay L1071 on 1st Floor, Fortune Carpark Rental Medium 100%
Commercial Building,
No.362 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories
60/27,700th shares of and in
The Remaining Portion of
Tsuen Wan Town Lot No. 355
MAZELPRBICHEREMERNEIE HEM A8 HHf 100%
#B [ L1012 /& 1 b ER 3555k #R ER 58
27,70017 2 6017
Car Park Nos. P250, P251, P252, P253,  Carpark Rental Medium 100%
P254, P255, P256 and P257,
Sun Hing Garden, No.2 On Po Lane,
Tai Po, New Territories. 24/64, 299th
shares of and in Tai Po Town Lot No. 26
R K & i B ok BT BIFE B P250 JHE L g} A 100%

P251 « P252 « P253 ~ P254 - P255 »
P256 [ P25756% B {1 A 37 T 1 EX 2658 55
64,29917) Z 2415

Synergis Holdings Limited
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